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          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Good

          3  afternoon, everybody. Welcome to the Subcommittee on

          4  Planning, Dispositions and Concessions, a

          5  Subcommittee of Land Use of the New York City

          6  Council. Today's date is Monday, July 23rd. I am

          7  joined today by a number of colleagues, members of

          8  this Committee, Council Member Inez Dickens of

          9  Manhattan; Council Member Maria Baez of the Bronx;

         10  Council Member Vinnie Ignizio, Staten Island; and

         11  we're also joined by Council Member Maria del Carmen

         12  Arroyo of the Bronx. And we have a number of items

         13  on the agenda for today, and so we're going to get

         14  right into them. We're going to start with HPD and

         15  our Third-party transfers. We will follow that with

         16  the Station Plaza and Atlantic Avenue Extension, and

         17  the other items on today's agenda.

         18                 So, with that, Ms. Clark, I'd like

         19  you to introduce preconsidered Land Use Third-party

         20  Transfer, In Rem No. 50. 20075521 HAK. Also

         21  preconsidered Land Use, Third-party Transfer, In Rem

         22  No. 50. 20075522 HAK. If you could introduce those

         23  items and introduce yourself.

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         25  you, Council Member Garodnick, members of the
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          2  Committee, and other Council Members present. I'm

          3  Carol Clark, I'm the Assistant Commissioner for

          4  Local Legislative Affairs at HPD.

          5                 This item consists of the proposed

          6  disposition of 22 properties located in Brooklyn,

          7  through HPD's Third-party Transfer Program round

          8  seven. From May 14th through June 28th of this year,

          9  those properties which have substantial Housing Code

         10  violations and tax arrears were before the Housing

         11  and Buildings Committee for the statutory 45-day

         12  review period. During that time Council Members were

         13  briefed and each affected member indicated approval

         14  of the third-party owner/developer selected by HPD

         15  through a competitive process.

         16                 To enable the transfer of the

         17  properties today, we ask the Planning Subcommittee

         18  to make UDAAP findings, which will enable title to

         19  be granted to the third-party owner developers who

         20  will own and manage the properties.

         21                 Council Members Barron, Dilan,

         22  Eugene, Gonzalez, James, Mealy, Nelson, Reyna and

         23  Vann have each expressed their support of the

         24  Brooklyn transfers in round seven of the Third-party

         25  Transfer Program.
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          2                 Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          4  much. Just to understand, the competitive process

          5  you described, has that commenced?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          7  there is a competitive process through a request for

          8  proposals and anyone who wants to apply puts in a

          9  request for proposal to be considered to be a

         10  developer in the Third-party Transfer Program. And

         11  there's a new one for each round, so folks qualified

         12  for round seven.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Round seven,

         14  I'm sorry?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Round

         16  seven of the program. The program has been in

         17  existence for about a decade and we're in the

         18  seventh round.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. Has the

         20  competitive process for round seven begun?

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes.

         22  It's begun and been used to select developers,

         23  owner/developers for this round who were approved in

         24  the period between May 14th and June 28th by the

         25  Council Members I mentioned.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

          3  you. And the request here is for the appropriate

          4  findings for UDAAP?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

          6  correct.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

          8  you.

          9                 Seeing no members of the public

         10  wishing to testify on preconsidered Land Use

         11  Third-party Transfer, In Rem No. 50, 20075521 HAK,

         12  or 5522 HAK, we will close the hearing on those two

         13  items.

         14                 Ms. Clark, thank you. I think we'll

         15  have you back in a little while. But for now we are

         16  going to open the hearing on Land Use No. 482 and

         17  483. These are two items, the Atlantic Avenue

         18  Extension, Queens Community Board 12, C070077 MMQ,

         19  and C070078 MMQ. This is a part of a two-part plan

         20  to rejuvenate an area of Jamaica, Queens to mitigate

         21  traffic concerns and to accommodate future growth in

         22  the area, future traffic growth in the area. The

         23  plan straddles two Council districts, that of

         24  Council Member Comrie and that of Council Member

         25  Gennaro. The Atlantic Avenue Extension, as we're
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          2  going to hear in a moment from the New York City

          3  Economic Development Corporation, that includes

          4  implementing a street that is already mapped, a

          5  condemnation of certain commercial properties and a

          6  park replacement, directional changes on 94th and

          7  95th Avenues. The Jamaica Station renovation will

          8  reconstruct an intersection that is known as one of

          9  the more dangerous ones in the City of New York, by

         10  widening Arthur Avenue through the condemnation of

         11  private and City-owned property, and add retail and

         12  renovate the Sutphin underpass and create open

         13  public space.

         14                 So, with that summary, I'm going to

         15  invite Tom McKnight, who is the Vice President of

         16  EDC, to introduce these two items, Land Use No. 482

         17  and 483.

         18                 Mr. McKnight.

         19                 MR. McKNIGHT: If we could just

         20  apologize for the technical difficulties. If we

         21  could have about two or three minutes just to set

         22  up, we'd appreciate it very much, then I can proceed

         23  with my testimony.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: You have got

         25  it.
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          2                 MR. McKNIGHT: Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, what

          4  we're going to do is, while EDC is setting up, Ms.

          5  Clark, why don't you come back, we have a few more

          6  items for you, and we're going to deal with those

          7  while EDC is finishing your set-up.

          8                 Again, we welcome Carol Clark of HPD.

          9  I'm going to temporary put a hold on Land Use 482

         10  and 483. Those are the ones which EDC is involved

         11  in, and open the hearing on Land Use No. 424, which

         12  is non-ULURP No. 20075334 HAX, which is a property

         13  at 366 East 154th Street in the Bronx. It's part of

         14  the Neighborhood Redevelopment Program in the

         15  district of Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo.

         16                 Ms. Clark, can you go ahead and

         17  introduce this one.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         19  LU 424 consists of the proposed disposition of one

         20  occupied City-owned building, which is located, as

         21  you noted, at 366 East 154 Street, through HPD's

         22  Redevelopment Neighborhood Program.

         23                 The not-for-profit sponsor Promesa

         24  Housing Development Fund Corporation (phonetic) will

         25  rehabilitate this building which provides 20 units
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          2  of low- and moderate-income rental housing. Council

          3  Member Arroyo has reviewed the project and indicated

          4  her support, I believe.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          6  much. Just to understand, it is occupied today, you

          7  said; is that correct?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

          9  correct. Currently there are 17 of the units

         10  occupied and three are vacant.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. And it

         12  will be renovated and it will be the same number of

         13  units in the aggregate once renovation is complete?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: In the

         15  same number in the aggregate when renovation is

         16  complete, we're checking on that one. I'm not

         17  exactly sure.

         18                 Terry Arroyo, who is my Land Use

         19  Director at HPD, has that answer.

         20                 MS. ARROYO: I'm sorry. Bear with me,

         21  I apologize. It's going to be a total of 20 units

         22  post-rehab.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: So, it's 20

         24  before.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: You

                                                            11

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  were correct, Chairman. You were absolutely right,

          3  20 units.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

          5                 And these are, the people who are

          6  living in them, will they have an opportunity to

          7  stay in their units?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

          9  they will.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And what will

         11  happen to them in the interim during rehab?

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: They

         13  will be moved off site. Relocated.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

         15                 And it's a rental building. Are there

         16  income limitations here? Are there any restrictions

         17  that HPD has imposed on these?

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: In the

         19  post-rehab scenario, their rental will not exceed 30

         20  percent of the tenants' income.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. Thank

         22  you very much.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. Seeing
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          2  no members of the public wishing to testify on this

          3  item, Land Use 424, non-ULURP number 20075334 HAX,

          4  we will close the hearing on that item and we will

          5  move on to Land Use No. 438, non-ULURP No. 20075379

          6  HAK, which is a number of different properties in

          7  the district of Council Member Dilan, as part of the

          8  New Foundations Program, and I will ask Ms. Clark to

          9  introduce this one.

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Okay.

         11  LU 438 consists of the proposed disposition of 19

         12  City-owned vacant lots located at 2322 Atlantic

         13  Avenue; 2319, 2315, 2301-2291, 2287-2279 Pacific

         14  Street; 2331, 2325-26, 2328 and 2338 Dean Street

         15  through HPD's New Foundations Program. The proposed

         16  developer, TNS Development Group, will construct 21

         17  three-family homes for a total of 63 units and one

         18  mixed use building containing residential units and

         19  ground floor commercial space.

         20                 Council Member Dilan has reviewed the

         21  project and has indicated his support.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         23  much. You said all of these lots are vacant today?

         24                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         25  correct, 19 vacant City-owned lots.

                                                            13

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 Seeing no other members of the public

          5  wishing to testify on Land Use No. 438, non-ULURP

          6  20075379 HAK, we will close the hearing on that

          7  item.

          8                 We're going to do two more of these

          9  very quickly, and then we're going to move on to our

         10  presentation from EDC.

         11                 We will open the hearing on Land Use

         12  442. Non-ULURP No. 20075383 HAK. Three properties in

         13  the District of Council Member Darlene Mealy.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         15  LU 442 consists of the proposed disposition of two

         16  vacant one-family City-owned homes located at 377

         17  and 379 Hopkinson Avenue, and one vacant City-owned

         18  building with two residential units over ground

         19  floor commercial space, located at 195 Patchen

         20  Avenue, through HPD's StoreWorks Program.

         21                 The proposed sponsor, NHS Community

         22  Development Corporation, will rehabilitate the

         23  building and sell it to an eligible purchaser.

         24  Council Member Mealy has reviewed the project and

         25  indicated her support.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          3  much. Can you just say how an eligible purchaser is

          4  defined or determined in this context?

          5                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Well,

          6  the targets of the estimated target income is up to

          7  165 percent of the AMI, which is, as you know, about

          8  $116,000 for a family of four.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. And NHS

         10  is doing the rehabilitation?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         12  correct. Neighborhood Housing Services.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And how is NHS

         14  selected to do the rehabilitation?

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: They

         16  were selected through a competitive process for all

         17  the StoreWorks projects, and this is one of the very

         18  last ones we'll be bringing to you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Right. Thank

         20  you.

         21                 Seeing no members of the public

         22  wishing to testify on this item, Land Use 442.

         23  Non-ULURP No. 20075383 HAK, we'll close the hearing

         24  on that item, and I will open the hearing on one

         25  which will be very quick, which is Land Use No. 444.
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          2  Non-ULURP No. 20075385 HAR, which is a district, at

          3  84 Popular Avenue in the district of our own Council

          4  Member Vincent Ignizio in Staten Island.

          5                 I have in my hand a letter from

          6  Joseph Rosenberg of the Office of Intergovernmental

          7  Affairs of the Department of Housing Preservation

          8  and Development, dated June 2nd, to Gail Benjamin,

          9  the Director of our Land Use Division here at the

         10  New York City Council regarding Land Use 444.

         11                 It says:

         12                 "Dear Ms. Benjamin, on behalf of the

             New York City Department of Housing Preservation and

         13  Development, I request the withdrawal of 84 Popular

             Avenue, Staten Island, New York in HPD's Negotiated

         14  Sales Program from the City Council's Land Use

             Calendar.

         15                 Thank you for your assistance in this

             matter.

         16                 Sincerely, Joseph Rosenberg."

         17                 So, we have a motion to file pursuant

         18  to withdrawal. Ms. Clark, is there anything else

         19  you'd like to say on that item?

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: No.

         21  We're pleased that you're accepting the withdrawal.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

         23  you.

         24                 With that, we'll close the hearing on

         25  -- go ahead, sorry. Council Member Ignizio. My
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          2  apologies.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: I just wanted

          4  to thank both you, Mr. Chairman, and HPD, for

          5  understanding the important role of Council members

          6  in their individual projects in their district and

          7  their wishes therein. I am hopeful that we can come

          8  back and have an agreed-upon settlement to this

          9  issue very shortly. Thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

         11  Council member.

         12                 Thank you, both. We will have you

         13  back one more time toward the end.

         14                 Now I would like to welcome Mr.

         15  McKnight and EDC back to talk to us about Land Use

         16  No. 482 and 483. I'd like to welcome Council Member

         17  Leroy Comrie who has joined us. As soon as you all

         18  are ready on 482 and 483, you can go ahead and

         19  begin. Please introduce yourselves.

         20                 Thank you very much. Sorry for the

         21  delay.

         22                 MR. McKNIGHT: I'm Tom McKnight, Vice

         23  President for the Economic Development Corporation.

         24  I'm joined by Jessica Baker, Project Manager for

         25  Economic Development Corporation.
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          2                 The projects before you here today

          3  are part of a comprehensive infrastructure set of

          4  projects aimed at improving transportation around

          5  what is really one of the most important

          6  transportation hubs in Queens and that's at Jamaica.

          7                 There is three projects that we're

          8  working on, two of which are under review and ULURP.

          9  I will talk to you briefly about the third, just to

         10  give you a sense of how our comprehensive focus has

         11  been on the transportation center.

         12                 And the timing is great, because this

         13  morning you heard from the Department of City

         14  Planning on a comprehensive rezoning which takes in

         15  the greater Downtown Jamaica area. And this is a

         16  project, the transportation project before you today

         17  is really meant to compliment and build upon that

         18  comprehensive rezoning action.

         19                 And the goals of the project are

         20  really focused on improving the pedestrian

         21  experience, improving the traffic flow in the area,

         22  making the area more usable, more pedestrian

         23  friendly, improving connections to buses and trains

         24  and private automobiles, as well as creating open

         25  space amenities for pedestrians and travelers, and
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          2  also, as I said, to really compliment the rezoning

          3  that's happening in the area and to help ensure that

          4  the area can accommodate the growth that's projected

          5  under the rezoning plan.

          6                 These projects have been long in the

          7  works. They originated with the Greater Jamaica

          8  Development Corporation in 2004, and they proceeded

          9  a great distance with the help and with the great

         10  involvement of the community. There's been multiple

         11  outreach sessions, open houses, planning sherets,

         12  tours, interaction with the Council members in the

         13  area, to ensure that what we have today is the right

         14  plan, is a broadly supported plan and one that makes

         15  sense for Downtown Jamaica.

         16                 And as part of that process, we heard

         17  a lot from the community, and the plan has been kind

         18  of reformed and rethought in response to those

         19  comments that we received from the community, and

         20  there's some of them, just to give you a sense of

         21  them. Jamaica, I think everyone agrees that Jamaica

         22  has really improved in the last decade or so, but

         23  there's still perception issues, shall we say, what

         24  people think about, from outside Jamaica, about the

         25  area.
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          2                 The arrival points. How you get into

          3  Jamaica are unattractive. The way you connect from

          4  bus to subway, for instance, is very hectic and

          5  haphazard. That in particular, the Arthur Sutphin

          6  Intersection, which is really the core of our

          7  actions, is really unsafe for pedestrians and from a

          8  traffic standpoint doesn't really work.

          9                 In addition, the Long Island Railroad

         10  Viaduct, which separates the Downtown, kind of

         11  divides the Downtown, really acts as a barrier

         12  between the north and south sides. There's a lack of

         13  open space. And something that originated from some

         14  of the original planning thoughts about the area was

         15  that private homes should be preserved, that

         16  community should be strengthened, and that's

         17  something we took very much to heart.

         18                 I'm going to talk to you about, as I

         19  said, three projects: The Sutphin Underpass;

         20  Atlantic Avenue Extension; and Station Plaza. The

         21  ULURP actions focus on Atlantic Avenue Extension and

         22  Station Plaza, but as I said, just to give you a

         23  sense that this is a well-thought-out comprehensive

         24  plan, I just want to touch on the Underpass Project,

         25  as well.
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          2                 And this project focuses on that

          3  issue of the Long Island Railroad Viaduct acting as

          4  a barrier between the north and south sides. And

          5  this project, as you can see here today, is focused

          6  on an area that is unattractive, uninviting, and our

          7  focus on it has been to make improvements to the

          8  pedestrian environment, to create retail spaces and

          9  to really provide a space that really compliments

         10  and builds on the neighborhood, as well as building

         11  on the Long Island Railroad Terminal, which has

         12  recently been completely renovated, and if you

         13  haven't been out there I really suggest that you do.

         14  It's a fantastic looking facility.

         15                 And here is an image of what the

         16  Viaduct will look like in the future. Well lit and

         17  retail spaces.

         18                 The second project, and one which is

         19  part of the ULURP actions under review today is the

         20  Atlantic Avenue Extension in Gateway Park. Here is

         21  the project area. You can see the Air Train tracks

         22  kind of crossing through the area, the block in

         23  question is on the right. There is a vacant parcel,

         24  some residential homes.

         25                 On your left is the Long Island
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          2  Railroad Viaduct. At the bottom is the Van Wyck

          3  Expressway, and cutting kind of across the site is

          4  the Atlantic Avenue.

          5                 And this project aims to create and

          6  build upon a mapped but unbuilt street that runs

          7  through the block at the lower left-hand side of

          8  your screen. This has been a map street since

          9  approximately the '40s. It was never built. We're

         10  tapping it into a more creative sensitive way to

         11  create a new way to access the Downtown. So, it is a

         12  new street, connecting into a new one-way street

         13  network, as well as creating open space and I'll

         14  provide a little bit more detail.

         15                 Here is a close-up of the block in

         16  question. As you can see, there's 14 residential

         17  homes on the block. The idea would be to create that

         18  new street connection. That diagonal street does not

         19  exist today. To create the new street, the new

         20  access point to the downtown, to the Air Train area,

         21  to the Long Island Railroad, as well as create open

         22  space surrounding the new street connection.

         23                 This provides a little bit more of a

         24  close-up on how the new street would connect in with

         25  the existing 95th Avenue. And here is a rendering of
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          2  what the project would look like in the future.

          3                 This is a close-up looking into the

          4  site from Atlantic Avenue at the Van Wyck Service

          5  Road with the Air Train cutting diagonally across

          6  the site.

          7                 There is, with both of the Atlantic

          8  Avenue Extension, as well as Station Plaza Project,

          9  some property acquisition required.  For the

         10  Atlantic Avenue Extension, it involves the

         11  acquisition of a single warehouse structure and

         12  adjacent parking lot, which would be required as

         13  part of the project.

         14                 As I said earlier, the preservation

         15  of private homes was expressed to us as being very,

         16  very important and the project has been curtailed to

         17  make sure that we are creating the new street.  We

         18  are creating that traffic benefit. We are creating

         19  open space, but all the homes on the existing block

         20  will remain. The acquisition of that one warehouse

         21  parcel is required.

         22                 Next, the Station Plaza Project.

         23                 Here is the intersection. The Archer

         24  Avenue is running across the screen. Sutphin

         25  Boulevard is intersecting it. Across the street is
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          2  the Long Island Railroad facility I spoke of and

          3  that's the Long Island Railroad Office Building

          4  there, to the right.

          5                 So, our focus is on this intersection

          6  and how to build upon it. It's a key intersection in

          7  Queens for transit reasons, for traffic reasons, how

          8  do we improve it?

          9                 So, our goals have been to increase

         10  access, to create open spaces, and primarily,

         11  really, to ensure that traffic works better in the

         12  area. There's an enormous amount of vehicles that

         13  pass through the intersection, an enormous amount of

         14  buses, how can we make the intersection accommodate

         15  them better, while also providing pedestrian

         16  amenities?

         17                 Some of the issues related to this

         18  intersection. It's among the worst in Queens for

         19  pedestrian accidents. About 50 vehicle accidents per

         20  year.

         21                 The sidewalk infrastructure wasn't

         22  really built with development in mind. It didn't

         23  really keep up with the times. So, there is really a

         24  lack of space for pedestrians, and as a result,

         25  there is conflicts when pedestrians are crossing the
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          2  street and vehicles are turning against them. There

          3  is really very few places where pedestrians can sit.

          4  There's very few trees planted. The area in general

          5  is a poor pedestrian environment.

          6                 To give you a sense of how transit

          7  works in the area, there is 13 bus routes that serve

          8  the area, and they all pretty much converge on that

          9  intersection. Some transit issues. About 120 buses

         10  in the peak hour. That's about 3,000 passengers in

         11  the peak hour. Inadequate alignment for buses,

         12  livery cabs operating in an uncontrolled manner,

         13  conflicts at the subway entrances and on top of

         14  this, an interesting stat is that the subway station

         15  right at Sutphin Boulevard has seen about a 73

         16  percent increase in utilization from 90 to 2006.

         17  This gives you a sense of some of the subway

         18  constraint issues. This shows the clearance for

         19  pedestrians around subway entrances, and why the

         20  intersection becomes so problematic for pedestrians.

         21  And at the southeast corner there's less than seven

         22  feet for pedestrians to move through the area.

         23                 And here is showing that same

         24  intersection on a typical day, where you have people

         25  on the verge of being in the street, not enough
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          2  room, right in an area where buses pull in to load

          3  and off-load.

          4                 So, this shows the existing street

          5  alignment. I ask that you focus on those red bars.

          6  Those are the existing air vents for the Sutphin

          7  Boulevard Station, and because of the cost and the

          8  work involved, if one were to contemplate moving

          9  those, those are the stationary object in this

         10  project.

         11                 So, in the future, those air vents

         12  which are now in the north side of Archer Avenue,

         13  become part of a future median. This project calls

         14  for a widened Archer Avenue, as well as the creation

         15  of new open spaces to the north and plaza spaces to

         16  the south of the area.

         17                 Here is just some of the things that

         18  the project brings to the area. As I said, widened

         19  sidewalks, something that's very important because

         20  of those clearance issues, we're moving some of the

         21  subway entrances out of the sidewalk into new plaza

         22  spaces. We're providing additional turning lanes

         23  from Archer Avenue. We're improving the traffic

         24  level of service, and we're allowing for future

         25  traffic growth.

                                                            26

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2                 This is a rendering of the future

          3  view. You can see a realigned Archer Avenue. What

          4  you see on the north side are new open spaces, as

          5  well as what would be concession spaces, public

          6  market-type spaces that would be transit oriented,

          7  that would be designed to build upon the transit

          8  nature of the area. So, that could be florist shops,

          9  anything from coffee shops, newspaper stands, uses

         10  that will really help build up the area and the

         11  vibrance of the area and tap into that

         12  transit-oriented nature of the area.

         13                 There is also acquisition involved

         14  with this project. It's a little bit more ambitious,

         15  as you can see. The project calls for the

         16  acquisition of six private parcels, in order to

         17  allow for the project to move forward. And that

         18  would include the widening of the street, the new

         19  open spaces and the new concession spaces.

         20                 Just a note on acquisition. This is

         21  something that in our conversations with the

         22  community board was obviously very important, as

         23  well as from the Council members, and we've fully

         24  recognized that acquisition isn't something that's

         25  entered into lightly. The traffic issues and the
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          2  transportation issues in Jamaica are significant,

          3  and unless we take these actions, we don't feel that

          4  you're really going to see a significant improvement

          5  in transportation or open space or pedestrian

          6  amenities in the area. That said, we recognize that

          7  acquisition and relocation needs to be dealt with

          8  very sensitively.

          9                 We've brought on a consultant who

         10  specializes in relocation. We have had open house

         11  with affected property owners and tenants. We have

         12  been interacting with the owners and affected

         13  tenants to ensure that they understand the project,

         14  to ensure that they understand their rights, and as

         15  the project moves forward, our involvement with them

         16  and our interaction with them will continue to

         17  ensure that the project is done sensitively.

         18                 To give you a little sense on our

         19  time line, as you know, we certified into ULURP in

         20  the winter, we anticipate completion this summer.

         21                 Atlantic Avenue Extension is a fully

         22  funded project. It's about a $26 million project

         23  funded with a mix of funds. It is fully funded. We

         24  are in design now. We anticipate we would initiate

         25  the acquisition process in the fall, complete the
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          2  design process next summer and be able to start

          3  construction soon after.

          4                 For Station Plaza, design is roughly

          5  on the same schedule. However, there is two factors

          6  that we're continuing to work on before we'll be

          7  able to lay out a very clear acquisition and

          8  construction time line.

          9                 The first is, the project is

         10  approximately a $50 million project of which it is

         11  75 percent funded. We are continuing to seek funds,

         12  and we're confident that the project will be fully

         13  funded.

         14                 And the second issue is, as we move

         15  forward with the project, we heard from one specific

         16  property owner who is affected by Station Plaza, who

         17  has interest in developing the site and was

         18  obviously very concerned about the prospect of

         19  acquisition. You'll probably hear from that property

         20  owner today. We have been working with them in a

         21  good faith effort to ensure that our project and

         22  their own development plans can move forward. We,

         23  the City, are working with them on a memorandum of

         24  understanding, to kind of lay out an agreement on

         25  how the projects would move forward in tandem.
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          2                 So, that's an overview of the

          3  projects. I'd be happy to answer any questions about

          4  both Atlantic Avenue Extension, Station Plaza. Of

          5  course, if you have a question about Underpass, I'd

          6  be happy to answer that, as well.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          8  much. Let me just pose a couple of quick questions

          9  and then I am going to turn it over to Council

         10  Member Comrie, who I know wants to make a statement

         11  on these items.

         12                 First I just wanted to be clear.

         13  First on Atlantic Avenue, the condemnations that

         14  were taking place with regard to that portion of

         15  this project were for a warehouse and a parking lot;

         16  is that right?

         17                 MR. McKNIGHT: That's correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the

         19  warehouse was private, the parking lot was owned by

         20  the City?

         21                 MR. McKNIGHT: The City-owned parcel

         22  is a separate parcel. It's an L-shaped parcel. The

         23  acquisition is the warehouse and the adjacent

         24  parking lot.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, so the
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          2  warehouse and the parking lot are owned by the same

          3  entity?

          4                 MR. McKNIGHT: That's correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. But as

          6  you indicated, no private homes were impacted, or

          7  were not condemned by, would not be condemned by

          8  this action?

          9                 MR. McKNIGHT: That's correct.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: What affect

         11  would the private homes see as a result of the

         12  rerouting of Atlantic Avenue? What affect would that

         13  have on those residential homes?

         14                 MR. McKNIGHT: Well, there will be a

         15  new street that will be routed through the block,

         16  however, the street, as well as the open space

         17  around it, is being designed to ensure that the

         18  homes are properly buffered to ensure there is

         19  controls on noise, and we'll continue to work with

         20  the property owners on issues like fencing, on

         21  issues like planting, to ensure that the project

         22  does work and is complimentary to the existing

         23  homeowners there.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: As I remember

         25  from the drawing, one side of the residential
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          2  properties has a street directly in front of the

          3  front doors, I guess, today; would that be a

          4  through-street, or is that street going to end and

          5  be a deadend at the end of this project?

          6                 MR. McKNIGHT: 95th Avenue, there was

          7  some initial planning work and some thinking about

          8  whether it made sense to eliminate the access from

          9  95th Avenue, from the Van Wyck. Right now that's not

         10  being contemplated. So, 95th, just to be clear, 95th

         11  Avenue would continue to be a through-street.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. Well,

         13  with that, I'd like to turn it over to Council

         14  Member Leroy Comrie, and it's all yours.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chair.

         17                 I want to thank yourself and the Land

         18  Use staff for working with me today. I have the

         19  Jamaica Plan, the largest rezoning in the City,

         20  which is still having a hearing this morning. That's

         21  why I'm running back and forth between two rooms.

         22  This is contextual to that, the Atlantic Avenue

         23  Extension, which will provide a real opportunity to

         24  deal with the worst corridor, as far as traffic and

         25  accidents in my district, which is the Sutphin
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          2  Boulevard, now Sutphin Boulevard Downtown area, that

          3  is right around the Long Island Railroad -- if any

          4  of you have traveled along the Long Island Railroad

          5  and gotten off at Sutphin Boulevard, you're

          6  literally ten feet, sometimes less, from the street,

          7  and it as a result has been the highest number of

          8  accidents in Queens, and it's a very precarious

          9  location.

         10                 I want to thank Tom McKnight, EDC,

         11  HPD and all the agencies that have been involved

         12  with this. They have been, as you saw from the slide

         13  presentations, involved with community meetings from

         14  day one. They met with business owners, they met

         15  with the community board, they have had at least

         16  four public hearings on this issue internally within

         17  the community. The Community Board 12 did vote for

         18  this overwhelmingly to be adopted with some

         19  considerations. One of the main considerations that

         20  they wanted to ensure was that there would be

         21  community participation in the employment and also

         22  in the entrepreneurial opportunities, which a letter

         23  was generated from EDC guaranteeing that. There is

         24  some condemnation involved. There is a commitment

         25  from EDC, HPD and the other agencies to, in dealing
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          2  with the condemnation to offer the property owners

          3  that are interested the first crack at the

          4  concession stands that will be developed, the first

          5  crack at -- also there are some concession stands

          6  that will be developed on the east side of the Long

          7  Island Railroad Underpass that is now a decrepit

          8  area which has just been used for storage. There is

          9  a simultaneous federal project that is going to open

         10  that up into an opportunity for people to put small

         11  shops there. There is also a commitment from the

         12  City to do financing, to do entrepreneurial

         13  training, to do relocation benefits for all of the

         14  property owners that are involved there, and the

         15  property owners that are high-income owners are also

         16  being given an opportunity to relocate in properties

         17  right in that area.

         18                 There has been extensive meetings to

         19  work on this project, and to oversee and deal with

         20  all of the issues. You'll hear from one property

         21  owner at least that still has an ongoing issue about

         22  the amount of access that he would like for his

         23  particular property, but overwhelmingly there will

         24  be a development of an revolving loan fund for

         25  businesses. There will be an interagency component
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          2  working with the community board offering right of

          3  first refusal for community board people that have

          4  an opportunity to either purchase property or start

          5  businesses within that area. We are working with the

          6  parking for the residents, for the homeowners on

          7  95th Avenue and 94th Avenue, to ensure that they get

          8  as much parking as available and eliminate permanent

          9  parking in that area as much as possible.

         10                 We also are going to be working to

         11  resolve their environmental issues to ensure that

         12  those residents that have homes along that area can

         13  get better soundproofing in their homes, and also to

         14  ensure that in my district we have a high

         15  watertable, because we have a natural aquifer,

         16  therefore, any time there is road construction pipes

         17  break, the water pipes break. The City has agreed to

         18  pick up the cost for any water pipe break damage

         19  within this project that will naturally happen

         20  because of the high water table.

         21                 So, I want to thank, and also there

         22  will be a commitment to recruit local employees from

         23  the local postal zones. I've been working closely

         24  with all of the agencies on this project. I

         25  recommend this project highly after it's reviewed,
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          2  and I'm still working with the property owner at

          3  9075 Sutphin Boulevard to try to mitigate their

          4  issues as much as possible so that they can still

          5  have an opportunity to develop a full property, but

          6  also maintaining that we need to ensure that there

          7  is a safe corridor for people to get on and off, get

          8  on buses and get in and out of the subway.

          9                 If you've had a chance to look at the

         10  individual slides, as I said earlier, the primary

         11  reason behind putting this project together is that

         12  on a rainy day such as today, you're getting wet

         13  when you're coming out the subway. You're getting

         14  splashed by cars. You're getting splashed by the

         15  buses, because you literally can't back-up far

         16  enough to avoid the water, to avoid the high volume

         17  of traffic that's coming through there.

         18                 So, this is really about creating an

         19  opportunity to help the commuter to create other

         20  opportunities for economic development and to create

         21  other -- to create a safer transportation corridor.

         22  This has been funded with a lot of federal money,

         23  and we are looking to ensure that the federal

         24  government can pick up as much as the rest of the

         25  money as possible. And I want to commend, and I'm
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          2  forgetting everybody's name, but everyone that has

          3  been involved in the project, and I'll just say Tom

          4  McKnight, et al, to cover everybody's name that's

          5  been involved with this project.

          6                 So, I would strongly recommend the

          7  project. Are you voting today? I would strongly

          8  recommend an affirmative vote on this overall

          9  project, and I thank all that have been involved

         10  with it. And I'm going to run back to the hearing,

         11  unless anybody has questions for me?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

         13  Council Member Comrie. Thank you for your leadership

         14  on this issue. Obviously, there is a lot happening

         15  in your district, relevant to your district today,

         16  and we're glad you're able to be here for this

         17  portion.

         18                 On the issue of funding for Mr.

         19  McKnight, you mentioned this was a $50 million

         20  project, and it was either, I think you said 70 or

         21  75 percent funded; is that all to this point federal

         22  funding? What is the breakdown of funding for the

         23  project? And also, if you could tell us what the

         24  goal is specifically for the final 25 or 30 percent?

         25                 MR. McKNIGHT: To be more precise, the
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          2  total project is about 46 and we're about 12 million

          3  shy. But the existing funds are primarily federal.

          4  There is some City capital funds involved in the

          5  project, and there is also some Port Authority funds

          6  involved in the project, but it's predominantly

          7  federally funded.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And the 12

          9  million to come?

         10                 MR. McKNIGHT: The 12 million, we

         11  recently received a significant funding boost which

         12  brought us to where we are today, which is very

         13  encouraging. As the Councilman said, we are

         14  confident that there could be additional federal

         15  funds and there could be additional City funds to

         16  bridge the gap, and we're working actively to ensure

         17  that the project could move forward.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Comrie.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes, also, Mr.

         21  Chair, there is an Airport Advisory Fund that this

         22  project, we're advocating strongly to cover that

         23  gap, and it has so far cleared every hurdle, as far

         24  as being one of the primary projects to be

         25  considered in that funding stream, which would be
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          2  hopefully decided by September, October.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you. Are

          4  there questions for Mr. McKnight before we go on to

          5  our other witnesses? Okay, seeing none, I would just

          6  say a final note for you is that obviously we hope

          7  you will continue in your good faith effort to come

          8  to agreement with the very sensitive task that you

          9  have ahead with the individual private property

         10  owners who are involved in a significant project of

         11  this type, and we'll just ask for your continued

         12  understanding and efforts to try to deal with their

         13  concerns.

         14                 MR. McKNIGHT: We appreciate that. We

         15  understand the project has to be done in a sensitive

         16  manner.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 MR. McKNIGHT: Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: With that I'm

         21  going to invite up, let's see, Peter Engelbrecht.

         22  Did I get that right? Mr. Engelbrecht, come on up,

         23  representing the Greater Jamaica Development

         24  Corporation. And as I understand it, you're here to

         25  testify on both Land Use No. 482 and 483. And you
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          2  can go ahead and introduce, and if I butchered your

          3  name, I apologize. Please just go ahead and correct

          4  me.

          5                 MR. ENGELBRECHT: That's okay.

          6  Councilman Garodnick, thank you for the opportunity

          7  to testify before this Committee. I am Peter

          8  Engelbrecht, Director of Capital Projects at Greater

          9  Jamaica Development Corporation. The intersection at

         10  Sutphin Boulevard and Archer Avenue is a

         11  long-neglected transit hub serving 13 bus lines, the

         12  subway and the Long Island Railroad.

         13                 On an average weekday, about 18,000

         14  passengers use the subway at this location. It is

         15  congested, unsafe and chaotic environment - the

         16  worst intersection for pedestrian accidents in

         17  Queens, and the 11th worst in the City. There are

         18  about 50 vehicular accidents at this intersection

         19  every year.

         20                 As the gateway to the now completed

         21  350 million dollar public investment that includes

         22  the renovation of the Long Island Railroad Station

         23  and the construction of Air Train terminal, this

         24  intersection requires special attention and

         25  substantial adjustments.
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          2                 There have been many attempts by DOT

          3  over the years to tinker with the problems here, but

          4  none have succeeded. Station Plaza is a major

          5  redesign of the intersection, allowing more sidewalk

          6  space for pedestrians, easing traffic flow and bus

          7  turns, improving lighting and signage. It will also

          8  provide much needed amenities for thousands of

          9  commuters who use this place daily, including plaza,

         10  seating, landscaping and concessions.

         11                 Greater Jamaica Development

         12  Corporation strongly supports these public

         13  improvements which are critical to sustain the

         14  development anticipated by the proposed zoning.

         15                 Station Plaza is currently urgently

         16  needed to correct the existing, unsafe and

         17  dysfunctional conditions that exist now. DOT, DCP

         18  and EDC are to be commended for taking the bold

         19  steps that are necessary to achieve these goals.

         20                 Access to the transportation hub at

         21  Sutphin Boulevard and Archer Avenue from the Van

         22  Wyck Expressway in the west is congested and

         23  indirect. Downtown Jamaica lacks a clear and

         24  identifiable gateway from the west that functions

         25  efficiently and is attractive.
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          2                 In combination with the proposed

          3  94th/95th Avenue one-way pair, the Atlantic Avenue

          4  Extension will substantially improve access to the

          5  downtown, and will mitigate the congestion that

          6  occurs on 95th Avenue, particularly at the peak hour

          7  at the end of the workday.

          8                 In addition to these fundamental

          9  circulation improvements, the project will provide

         10  much needed park space in a neighborhood where there

         11  is currently none. It will also create a

         12  much-improved gateway to Jamaica, with landscaping,

         13  special lighting and path-finding signage. The

         14  streetscape in the adjoining neighborhoods on 94th

         15  and 95th Avenues will also be improved with tree

         16  planting and new lighting. The project will improve

         17  conditions today and will also allow for the

         18  increased density of development that is proposed by

         19  the new zoning around the Air Train terminal.

         20                 Greater Jamaica strongly supports

         21  this effort to improve traffic circulation in the

         22  Downtown and to provide much-needed public open

         23  space. Thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         25  much. We appreciate your testimony.
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          2                 Next I would like to call up both

          3  Larry Bernstein and James Grielsheimer representing

          4  Jonas Equities. Gentlemen, whenever you're ready.

          5  Welcome.

          6                 As soon as you're ready, if you will

          7  just introduce yourselves for the record and you may

          8  go ahead and get started.

          9                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Thank you, Committee,

         10  Council Member Garodnick, for the opportunity to

         11  speak today. My name is Larry Bernstein. I'm Vice

         12  President of Jonas Equities, and we're the owner of

         13  property fronting on Archer Avenue, between Sutphin

         14  Boulevard and 147th Place. We are in the Station

         15  Plaza condemnation area.

         16                 First I want to take the opportunity

         17  to thank a number of Council Members who have been

         18  very kind enough to listen to us, and to those who

         19  have worked to help us try to resolve our issues

         20  with the condemnation, in particular, Council

         21  Members Comrie, Gennaro, Garodnick, and Council

         22  Member Katz, who have been very kind to us in this

         23  process in trying to effectuate a resolution.

         24                 We are a family operation. I

         25  represent the third generation, and we have owned
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          2  the subject properties for over 40 years. We have

          3  remained in Jamaica throughout, and we wish the

          4  opportunity to redevelop our property in an

          5  appropriate manner and to continue to do business in

          6  Jamaica.

          7                 As part of the City's plan for the

          8  revitalization of Downtown Jamaica, the Economic

          9  Development Corporation proposes to condemn a

         10  substantial portion of our property. It's Lot No.

         11  38. I believe there is a handout. Which is the

         12  colored areas on the handout. Is both part of the

         13  condemnation. In order to widen Sutphin Boulevard to

         14  provide an improved turning radius for buses at the

         15  corner of Archer Avenue and Sutphin Boulevard, and

         16  to create a public plaza with private concessions

         17  fronting on Archer Avenue.

         18                 We are strongly in favor of

         19  redevelopment of Downtown Jamaica and applaud the

         20  efforts to rezone the area and improve pedestrian

         21  and traffic safety. However, we have to strenuously

         22  object to the City attempt to condemn most of our

         23  property in Lot 38 for private development.

         24                 I request that the City merely

         25  condemn what is necessary, a 12-foot deep bus turn
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          2  lane, while preserving the remainder of our property

          3  so we may construct an economically viable building

          4  in the heart of Downtown Jamaica along with the

          5  amenities desired by the City.

          6                 Our property comprises two contiguous

          7  lots, lots 31 and 38 of block 9994. Lot 38 is the

          8  property to be condemned by the City. It is 80 feet

          9  deep and fronts the entire 202 feet along Archer

         10  Avenue between Sutphin and 147th Place.

         11                 The remaining lot, Lot 31, is

         12  irregularly shaped, and is improved with an

         13  obsolete, 40-year-old, six-story vacant, entirely

         14  vacant office building formerly occupied by New York

         15  City's Human Resources Administration.

         16                 The condemnation of all Lot 38 will

         17  leave us with the irregularly L-shaped Lot 31 and

         18  the vacant office building, lacking modern

         19  infrastructure and with only eight-foot ceilings,

         20  which was constructed specifically by the City for

         21  the City on this spec. The vacant, this vacant

         22  building cannot be feasibly renovated to modern

         23  standards and has become unrentable at an

         24  appropriate return. Not to mention, as far as the

         25  community has indicated to us, they would rather see
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          2  some other structure there, other than the building

          3  that is presently situated.

          4                 More importantly, the irregular shape

          5  and reduced size of the lot resulting from the

          6  condemnation will preclude the economical

          7  construction of a new commercial building with an

          8  efficient and sufficient footprint.

          9                 The proposed condemnation, further,

         10  is we believe unconstitutional, since a substantial

         11  portion of our property will be turned over to a

         12  private developer for use as a private concession

         13  space. I am advised by Counsel, and he will testify

         14  that the Supreme Court has recently held that the

         15  City is forbidden from taking private property for

         16  the purpose of conferring a private benefit on a

         17  particular private party.

         18                 It is unnecessary for the City to

         19  condemn all of our 80 deep lot 38 in order to

         20  achieve the purpose of creating a better bus turn

         21  lane and concession space open area. A new traffic

         22  lane is only 12 feet in width. Moreover, there is no

         23  need to take our privately owned property in order

         24  to turn it over to other private entities to develop

         25  it for street level concessions or other retail
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          2  uses.

          3                 We have consistently offered to work

          4  with City Planning, EDC, local elected officials,

          5  and the community board to provide a desirable space

          6  with retail uses while retaining our ability to

          7  construct a viable building in the heart of the

          8  Jamaica redevelopment.

          9                 Indeed, we would be willing to enter

         10  into binding agreements with the City to ensure

         11  appropriate use of our property the City wishes to

         12  condemn for other developers.

         13                 Although we have met with

         14  representatives of the Department of City Planning,

         15  the Economic Development Corporation, to resolve our

         16  differences, unfortunately, to date we have not

         17  achieved a resolution of our differences.

         18                 The Department of City Planning has

         19  presented to us a Memorandum of Understanding which

         20  we will continue to negotiate in good faith.

         21  However, we strongly believe that the tax-paying

         22  people who have remained invested in Jamaica for the

         23  past four decades should now have the opportunity to

         24  redevelop their property rather than see it

         25  condemned and turned over to a favored developer.
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          2                 We urge the City to grant our modest

          3  request that only the minimum amount of property

          4  necessary for the bus turn be condemned, and to work

          5  with us so that we may redevelop our property in a

          6  manner appropriate to the proposed redevelopment

          7  plan without surrendering our rights as a tax-paying

          8  owner.

          9                 I respectfully ask that the City

         10  mapping action only apply to the area required for

         11  the pedestrian traffic improvements and remaining

         12  portion of our Lot 38, along with the public plaza,

         13  be incorporated into our development plan in

         14  conjunction with the City.

         15                 We further ask for a Follow-Up

         16  Corrective Action to review this plaza and that we

         17  have been told prior until today that there was not

         18  this possibility, we attached for your review a

         19  different proposal which would effectuate a plaza

         20  and actually a more effective plaza, while at the

         21  same time allowing us to maintain a retail presence

         22  on Archer, which we had believed would be the best

         23  solution to all concerned, while implementing the

         24  necessary traffic improvements.

         25                 We were told this was not a
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          2  possibility. However, we were advised today that

          3  there is something called a FUCA, a Follow-Up

          4  Corrective Action, and we ask that this be

          5  considered to also remedy this situation.

          6                 Thank you for your consideration.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          8  much.

          9                 MR. GRIELSHEIMER: Thank you, Mr.

         10  Chair. I am James Grielsheimer, a member of the firm

         11  of Blank Roam. I specialize in the area of

         12  condemnation, and I appear before you today as a

         13  condemnation lawyer who urges you not to condemn all

         14  the property that EDC has mentioned.

         15                 Mr. Bernstein, in his testimony, has

         16  covered the essential points. Rather than repeat

         17  them, let me just emphasize again that it is clear

         18  condemnation law that government may only condemn

         19  what it needs. It needs some property in order to

         20  address the traffic issue. It does not need the

         21  other property for a retailed use, because Mr.

         22  Bernstein, in a memorandum of understanding, will

         23  commit his company to comply with an arrangement, an

         24  agreement worked out with the EDC. Not to allow Mr.

         25  Bernstein, who owns the property, to continue to

                                                            49

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  have the property for that use, but to turn it over

          3  to another private developer, is violative of

          4  condemnation law.

          5                 Many people refer to the "City of New

          6  London" case that was decided by the Supreme Court

          7  in June of 2005. It held by a five to four vote that

          8  the City of New London could proceed with its

          9  condemnation in a blighted area. But the majority

         10  was very careful to say, and I quote, "The City

         11  would no doubt be forbidden from taking petitioner's

         12  land for the purpose of conferring a private benefit

         13  on a particular private party."

         14                 Each case is decided, as we know, on

         15  its own facts. In this case the facts will show that

         16  taking the property from Mr. Bernstein's company,

         17  Jonas Equities, and turning it over to another

         18  private developer, runs afoul of what the Supreme

         19  Court, all nine members, held in Kilo (phonetic).

         20                 The other point is, there is a

         21  significant valuation question here. The proposed

         22  taking of Lot 38 in its entirety will greatly

         23  diminish the value of my client's remaining

         24  property. The building on Lot 31 would become a

         25  non-complying building, and would not allow for any
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          2  further development. The antiquated building,

          3  specifically built for HRA, cannot feasibly be

          4  renovated and has become untenable at a reasonable

          5  economic return.

          6                 Where there is a partial taking, as

          7  the City has discussed in this case, property is

          8  valued on a before and after basis. Lot 31 and Lot

          9  38 together, the before value, are economically

         10  viable and right for redevelopment with the current

         11  revitalization of Jamaica.

         12                 However, after the proposed taking,

         13  Lot 31, by itself, is of most limited value. Thus

         14  the City, based on its present plans, will

         15  needlessly pay substantially more in condemnation

         16  than if it allowed the owner to retain part of Lot

         17  38 for redevelopment in conjunction with Lot 31.

         18                 Not only would it needlessly pay

         19  more, it also would most likely run afoul of the

         20  constitutional requirement of not taking property to

         21  turn it over to another private use.

         22                 In addition, the City is now

         23  proposing a separate ULURP action to rezone my

         24  client's property at a far different and less

         25  valuable manner than its immediate neighbors
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          2  directly across Archer Avenue and immediately to the

          3  east. This is a value-depressing act on the eve of

          4  condemnation, which will not be considered, in my

          5  opinion, by a condemnation court in valuing the

          6  property. These issues need not be pursued if the

          7  City, by negotiating reaches an agreement, and we're

          8  grateful for the opportunity to bring to the City

          9  Council's attention these fundamental important

         10  issues.

         11                 Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         13  much for your testimony, to both of you. Let me just

         14  follow-up with a couple of questions here. Just to

         15  make sure that I understand the distinction you're

         16  making between the context here and the New London

         17  precedent. In New London the land was condemned for

         18  a private developer for a public use; is that the

         19  distinction that you're making?  And in this context

         20  it would be condemned for a private entity for

         21  private use, which could otherwise have been

         22  entertained by Jonas Properties?

         23                 MR. GRIELSHEIMER: There were elements

         24  of that here in this instance. If we're not allowed

         25  to develop the property, then another developer
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          2  would develop it, and whether having the public

          3  areas there for development is private or public

          4  use, I think is a semantic question. It would be

          5  privately owned at that point.

          6                 It would not be for a governmental

          7  use or a public use in that sense, but it would be

          8  for having private stores or private, or places

          9  where people could congregate and eat.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And you

         11  indicated that your client would be willing to

         12  entertain whatever concession the City saw fit in

         13  this location; is that right?

         14                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Yes. We've said that

         15  from the community board hearings all the way up,

         16  that we want community involvement, we are very

         17  open, and at this point, we would contractually be

         18  bound to working with the City in developing the

         19  retail space, as what the City wants.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Can you say

         21  another word on, understanding your lot is divided

         22  between Lot 31 and Lot 38, your view is that in the

         23  aggregate it is a far higher value than Lot 31

         24  independently, or that it cannot be reasonably

         25  renovated, I think I heard you say. Can you just
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          2  explain a little bit more as to why the Lot 31

          3  independently does not have sufficient value or why

          4  it doesn't have any perhaps reasonable value? I

          5  don't want to put words in your mouth, but can you

          6  explain the distinction there between 31 and 38?

          7                 MR. BERNSTEIN: There is a combination

          8  of factors, which is an interplay between the

          9  condemnation that's occurring here and the rezoning

         10  being discussed in the other room. The rezoning, the

         11  new zoning for this property would be a C62, and if

         12  left with solely Lot 31, essentially all that can be

         13  done with the property is the existing building.

         14  There is no real ability to do anything different

         15  than that structure, if all other things being even.

         16  So, taking that fact alone, be left with that

         17  building, which was, again, it was built under City

         18  spec for HRA, which wasn't exactly attuned to

         19  architectural needs.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, I

         21  understand.

         22                 MR. BERNSTEIN: And if you look at the

         23  contours of the lot, particularly it is a point

         24  where it narrows, to try to even redevelop that

         25  building, you have, it is irregular floor plate,
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          2  which is okay for the City in what they needed, but

          3  just a general commercial building, it's an

          4  effective floor if someone wants a full floor space.

          5  We talked to a number of other developers with

          6  expertise and they've all raised that same issue.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

          8  you. I'm going to go to Council Member Ignizio for

          9  some questions.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Mine is somewhat more of a statement.

         13  I think, and I think we ought be concerned about the

         14  fact of EDC is not the City, despite what we all

         15  think. I mean, it's a quasi-governmental,

         16  quasi-corporate agency that is working here at the

         17  behest of a full development and/or a private entity

         18  and a developer against utilizing governmental

         19  powers, against another private entity, or another

         20  private land owner.

         21                 I also agree with you. I don't see

         22  the constitutionality of this action, and I would

         23  encourage that EDC strike a deal with you guys that

         24  works to both of your benefits, or ultimately I

         25  think the project is going to be in the balance,
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          2  should you seek a judicial remedy. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

          4  Council Member Ignizio.

          5                 And Council Member Dickens.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you,

          7  Mr. Chair. And thank you for your testimony.

          8                 What presently is on Lot 38?

          9                 MR. BERNSTEIN: It's presently a

         10  two-story structure which houses retail and some

         11  small offices. The major retail tenant right now is

         12  United States Post Office, which has property on

         13  Archer Avenue and then along 147th Place, and

         14  actually is using a very small piece of the rear of

         15  the office building on Lot 31 for their trucks and

         16  for moving packages and such.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: So your

         18  tenant presently on Lot 38 is the United States Post

         19  Office?

         20                 MR. BERNSTEIN: They're the primary

         21  tenant. The primary retail tenant, yes.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: All right.

         23  And the New London case, if I recall correctly, was

         24  primarily based upon eminent domain and not

         25  condemnation, which is different?
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          2                 MR. GRIELSHEIMER: Eminent domain and

          3  condemnation are synonymous.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Oh, it is?

          5                 MR. GRIELSHEIMER: So, you condemn

          6  property by the power of eminent domain. I've been

          7  using those two words, or two terms, synonymously.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: You have, but

          9  I mean, as far as a government is concerned or law,

         10  is there a difference between condemnation and the

         11  use of eminent domain?

         12                 MR. GRIELSHEIMER: No. Both are the

         13  same. They are the taking of property by a

         14  governmental agency, or some other authority that

         15  has the power to condemn, and it must be for a

         16  public use and just compensation must be paid, both

         17  in New York State and United States constitutions

         18  require that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: So

         20  compensation would be given to the owners if this is

         21  done? If this property is taken?

         22                 MR. GRIELSHEIMER: That's right.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Based upon

         24  what? Is it market, or is it something else?

         25                 MR. GRIELSHEIMER: It is based on the
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          2  fair market value, based on its highest and best

          3  use. And I was getting into this before and after

          4  concept that if we own both Lots 38 and 31, and

          5  together you value them before the taking based on

          6  its highest and best use, which could mean

          7  redeveloping the building that was formerly occupied

          8  by HRA, then you value what you are left with after

          9  the taking, which would just be that building, and

         10  as Mr. Bernstein explained, with most limited use.

         11  And so the condemnor here would end up paying more

         12  than it otherwise would have to pay because of the

         13  diminished value of what we are left with.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Thank you so

         15  much. I just wanted to get a clear understanding.

         16  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         18                 Council Member Comrie.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Thank you, Mr.

         20  Chair.

         21                 You spoke to the issue of the FUCA,

         22  wouldn't the FUCA that's being allowed give you the

         23  height that you need for the property fronting

         24  Sutphin Boulevard?

         25                 It's my understanding of the FUCA
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          2  that's being amended is to allow it so that you can

          3  get the density on the Sutphin Boulevard frontage,

          4  which is desired frontage because it's the higher

          5  traffic volume than Archer Avenue, correct?

          6                 So, the C6 that you're alluding to

          7  now would actually be amended where you could be

          8  able to demolish that building and build a building

          9  at the height of the proposed building that you have

         10  now?

         11                 MR. BERNSTEIN: What we had suggested

         12  was, the attachment to the handout, would have

         13  allowed for, at least we argued, a more effective

         14  plaza. In fact, would have more footage than the

         15  proposed plaza. Because we believe that it was

         16  designed primarily using the contour of the existing

         17  property, and basically we're saying what if we just

         18  used the whole, both lots as a clean slate, what

         19  would be the most effective plaza, that could be

         20  effectuated for all concerned, which allowed us the

         21  frontage, not only on Sutphin, but we believe Archer

         22  Avenue is going to be also an important retail

         23  corridor in light of the improvements that are going

         24  to happen to Archer Avenue, not to mention the large

         25  structure that is being zoned for across the street,
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          2  which I believe is going from M 1 to a 64.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you're

          4  saying your proposal would maintain the proposed

          5  street widening at the width and the dimensions that

          6  it is now?

          7                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Yes.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And that it

          9  would create more plaza space than is proposed at

         10  the present time with enough sidewalk depth from the

         11  Archer Avenue side to prevent pedestrians from being

         12  splashed on during the rain?

         13                 MR. BERNSTEIN: I believe that the

         14  structure that's here essentially uses the same

         15  street widening that is being proposed.

         16                 In other words, it's conceding the

         17  street widening.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm talking

         19  about if you look at your photo from, what is that

         20  street - 146th Street.

         21                 MR. BERNSTEIN: 147th.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: 147th to

         23  Sutphin Boulevard, that the first, where the dark

         24  purple, I guess, whatever that color is, that that's

         25  what, a 60-foot, 100 foot section? I'm just
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          2  guessing. I'll just pick a number. I don't know what

          3  this is. But the width of this area here is the same

          4  as the width that is being proposed by the City?

          5                 MR. BERNSTEIN: That's my

          6  understanding on the sidewalk.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Oh, the

          8  sidewalk area.

          9                 MR. BERNSTEIN: That's again also with

         10  the street widening in place. But again, it is also

         11  reconfiguring a more -- it is incorporating the

         12  concepts of putting a staircase in the square area.

         13  Now instead of a long plaza having in essence like a

         14  Jamaica Square sort of concept, and having it come

         15  into a large, open space right there.

         16                 This was, again --

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No, no. That's

         18  not what I'm asking.

         19                 I'm asking you specifically about the

         20  sidewalk width here, in this specific area here. Is

         21  that the same amount of width that is being

         22  presented in the plan that is proposed by EDC? I

         23  don't have my schematics correct. Is this the same

         24  amount of width that's being proposed?

         25                 MR. BERNSTEIN: I believe so. I
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          2  believe the rendering doesn't give the width

          3  justice, but there is land coming also onto the

          4  plaza itself, which wasn't there.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

          6                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Which also assumes

          7  that the building on Lot 31 will no longer exist as

          8  well.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. So, then

         10  -- the building on Lot 31 would no longer exist, so

         11  you could build a larger building ostensively,

         12  correct?

         13                 MR. BERNSTEIN: It would be roughly

         14  the same parameters that have been discussed, in

         15  terms of the size of the building.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. And the

         17  MOU that you're working out with EDC could

         18  ostensively allow your project to happen; isn't that

         19  correct?

         20                 MR. BERNSTEIN: No. Because the MOU

         21  would be based upon exactly how the plaza is

         22  dimensioned right now. The MOU is basically the

         23  terms, you know, in terms of incorporating air space

         24  into the new development property, but it will leave

         25  the plaza as is, and my understanding is that the
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          2  concession would remain under --they would still

          3  have concession abutting whatever structure we put

          4  up --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

          6                 MR. BERNSTEIN: And would now be

          7  handed to, through the RFP process, to a private

          8  developer.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Well, a

         10  private developer to do the construction, but they

         11  wouldn't own the property. That still would be

         12  City-owned, EDC property. So, I did need to make

         13  that clarification.

         14                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Okay.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: They're not

         16  turning over the property, they're turning over the

         17  work to someone to build a long-term lease

         18  opportunity here.

         19                 So, how do you get the same square

         20  footage with your plan? I don't understand it if the

         21  sidewalk dimensions are not the same.

         22                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Because it works out

         23  to roughly the same, that the building becomes more

         24  sort of a rear structure, using more of 147th Place,

         25  instead of sort of -- it's sort of almost like --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm sorry?

          3                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Almost turns the

          4  building around a little bit. It's not so much

          5  creating more developable space, it's merely a

          6  question of just creating a more effective building.

          7                 We don't have an issue with the

          8  amount of square feet. The issue is trying to find a

          9  way of developing the most effective building that

         10  would be complimentary to what is going to occur

         11  down there, and this was our proposal along those

         12  lines.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you're

         14  saying that you want your building to front Archer

         15  Avenue, as opposed to getting more height to front

         16  Sutphin Boulevard.

         17                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Correct. And we also

         18  raised the issue of a concession, as well.

         19                 We believe that we can incorporate

         20  that into whatever structure does end up to be

         21  there, either way.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you're

         23  saying you would want to put concessions along the

         24  Archer Avenue side; is that what you're saying?

         25                 MR. BERNSTEIN: To whichever way the
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          2  plaza ends up working out to be. We asked for the

          3  opportunity to work with the City and in essence do

          4  the concession ourselves, under the auspices of the

          5  City, as to their instructions, as to their needs,

          6  and as the owner of the property. We're asking for

          7  at least that first opportunity.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

          9                 It's my understanding that that

         10  particular area will be zoned at a C63. I'm looking

         11  at the proposed zoning map in the meeting next door

         12  here, which would give you more density to build on

         13  the Sutphin Boulevard side.

         14                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Unfortunately, our

         15  property, I guess I can show on the map, is zoned

         16  for 62. We have asked for the 63, because we believe

         17  that is compatible with the zoning that is being

         18  done along the Archer Avenue corridor --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right.

         20                 MR. BERNSTEIN: -- But right now our

         21  property is zoned at that block, that lot, and, of

         22  course, the remainder of that block is zoned 62.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But it is

         24  going to be amended in the FUCA? That's already been

         25  a guarantee from City Planning, which we'll be
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          2  voting on that August 6th, I believe, to make that

          3  amendment.

          4                 MR. BERNSTEIN: I wasn't aware of

          5  that.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. I just

          7  wanted to make you aware of that.

          8                 I just want to be clear, so, Mr.

          9  Chair, is there a possibility that this could be

         10  voted on in total? This plan has to be voted on in

         11  total, correct?

         12                 No, this one.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay. And then

         15  there is still an opportunity for Mr. Bernstein and

         16  Jonas Equities to make whatever amendments with EDC,

         17  as far as the frontage is concerned within the MOU.

         18  EDC is not here, so I have to ask my --

         19                 MR. BERNSTEIN: EDC is here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, it's still

         21  possible to accomplish both goals, correct? Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: It sounds like

         23  the conversations are ongoing between Jonas and EDC

         24  presently.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Right. Right.
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          2  I've asked EDC, and I know that Mr. Bernstein knows,

          3  to ensure that those meetings are held and to get

          4  back to me. It's just that I keep getting new plans

          5  presented to me. To try and understand, I want to be

          6  helpful to all parties involved, but primarily

          7  ensuring that the pedestrian access, especially my

          8  concern is the sidewalk access. Because if we're

          9  winding up with sidewalks on Archer Avenue that are

         10  the same width as they were before, that's not

         11  acceptable to me, and that's what I'm trying to

         12  ascertain here. Because the width that they were

         13  before was not enough to ensure pedestrian safety.

         14  And I still don't have a clear answer from you on

         15  that width.

         16                 So, I would hope that those issues

         17  could be resolved, you know, after the vote is

         18  taken. But I'm concerned that the pedestrian access

         19  along the Archer Avenue side, with the higher

         20  density, especially, would wind up to be as

         21  problematic as what exists now. That's just not

         22  acceptable. So, I need to get a better understanding

         23  of that. And not having that in front of me urges

         24  just me to go along with asking you to work with EDC

         25  and keeping me informed that your MOU is brought to
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          2  the level that it needs to be.

          3                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          5                 And I think that's a fair request, of

          6  course, to keep Council Member Comrie, as well as

          7  all of us, in the loop as to how your negotiations

          8  progress. I think we all hear very clearly Council

          9  Member Comrie's specific concerns about the width of

         10  the pedestrian access, and people getting swept into

         11  the rain and puddling and all the rest of it, but

         12  also your point that you're prepared to do basically

         13  whatever specifications there are from EDC about

         14  what concessions they want or would like to see on

         15  the site. So, it sounds like there is plenty of room

         16  for an agreement here, and we all encourage you to

         17  both continue to negotiate in good faith and please

         18  follow-up with Council Member Comrie and all of us.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And, again, I

         20  urge an affirmative vote on this. I will remind you

         21  that my community board voted it overwhelmingly

         22  after many meetings and understanding Mr.

         23  Bernstein's concerns and trying to work them out.

         24  So, we try to do as much as we can. And I'll get

         25  back to the members, but I'm urging an affirmative
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          2  vote. I've got to run back next door. Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          4  much, Council Member Comrie. And thank you to both

          5  of you for your testimony today.

          6                 MR. BERNSTEIN: Thank you for your

          7  time.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And we look

          9  forward to hearing from you again.

         10                 We are now going to close the hearing

         11  on Land Use Numbers 482 and 483, and open the

         12  hearing on Land Use No. 470, the Urbanization, Maria

         13  Lopez, Bronx Community Board 1, 20075535 HAX. I'd

         14  like to invite Julie Walpert of HPD and Ms. Clark,

         15  to introduce this item. This is an item in the

         16  District of Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo,

         17  and Ms. Walpert.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALPERT: Hi.

         19  Good afternoon. My name is Julie Walpert, and I am

         20  the Assistant Commissioner for Housing Supervision

         21  at the Department of Housing Preservation and

         22  Development.

         23                 Urbanization Maria Lopez is a

         24  216-unit project-based Section 8 development located

         25  in the Bronx. It was constructed in 1982 under
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          2  Article 5 of the Private Housing Finance Law as a

          3  redevelopment company.

          4                 Maria Lopez NH, LLC, a limited

          5  liability company organized as an Article V

          6  redevelopment company, would like to acquire the

          7  project and will maintain it for persons of low and

          8  moderate income. The new owner will rehabilitate the

          9  project, including: replacing five percent of the

         10  stoves, refrigerators and cabinets; painting the

         11  interior units where needed; correcting plumbing

         12  issues; painting common areas where needed;

         13  repairing the exterior walls and painting where

         14  needed; renovating the community room, including

         15  installation of a new kitchen and bathroom and the

         16  implementation of a daytime community senior center

         17  and after school youth center; renovating the play

         18  area; installing a new building security system with

         19  video cameras; installing new fencing and

         20  landscaping; and reconstructing the laundry

         21  facility.

         22                 The acquisition and rehabilitation

         23  will be financed by the assumption of the existing

         24  HUD insured mortgage and HUD subordinate mortgages

         25  and an infusion of private equity. Maria Lopez
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          2  currently has a partial tax exemption pursuant to

          3  the Private Housing Finance Law and makes annual

          4  shelter rent payments in lieu of paying full real

          5  property taxes. In order to support the proposed

          6  acquisition and rehabilitation, the new owner is

          7  requesting a new partial tax exemption. The owner is

          8  also seeking approval of the Project Summary, the

          9  conveyance of the Exemption Area by the current

         10  owner to the new owner, the termination of the

         11  partial tax exemption and consent to the voluntary

         12  dissolution of the current owner.

         13                 Finally, the new owner is seeking

         14  Council approval of the HPD Regulatory Agreement and

         15  authorization of the Commissioner of HPD to execute

         16  the regulatory agreement.

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         19  much, Ms. Walpert.

         20                 You described this as a Section 8

         21  development; is that right?

         22                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALPERT: Yes,

         23  it is. Project-based Section 8.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: All right. And

         25  how many tenants are there?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALPERT:

          3  Two-hundred sixteen units.

          4                 It's 215 tenants and one super's

          5  unit.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

          7                 And this is in two buildings; is that

          8  right?

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALPERT: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Two separate

         11  buildings. And are they both buildings of the same

         12  size?

         13                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALPERT: Well,

         14  actually, it's one building. I misspoke, I'm sorry.

         15  One building, I think it has two different

         16  entrances. One is a six story and one is a seven

         17  story part of the building.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, with a

         19  total of 215 units.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALPERT:

         21  Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         23                 And so, the approvals you said were,

         24  approval of the project summary, the conveyance of

         25  the exemption area, from the old owner to the new
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          2  owner; termination of the partial tax exemption;

          3  consent to involuntary dissolution of the current

          4  owner after the conveyance; a new partial tax

          5  exemption for the new owner; and approval of the new

          6  regulatory agreement between the City, HPD and the

          7  new owners; is that right?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER WALPERT:

          9  That's exactly right.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

         11  you.

         12                 I believe we have a few people

         13  wishing to testify on this item today. Let's call

         14  them up.

         15                 First we have Patrick Coleman of

         16  Tenants and Neighbors. Mr. Coleman. Let's also bring

         17  up Cedric Loftin, who is the District Manager of

         18  Bronx Community Board 1; and Denise Rosa of Maria

         19  Lopez Plaza. So, let me welcome all of you to the

         20  City Council, and why don't we start with Mr.

         21  Coleman, as I called you first.

         22                 MR. COLEMAN: Thank you very much,

         23  Chairperson Garodnick. And thanks very much to the

         24  Committee for offering us the opportunity -- are we

         25  on? Okay. I'd also just like to note that Dina Levy,
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          2  Director of Organizing and Policy for UHAB, is also

          3  joining us here today. We're here to testify on this

          4  issue on behalf of New York State Tenants and

          5  Neighbors, as well as UHAB. We're urging the

          6  Committee to not approve the tax abatements, as we

          7  understand it would facilitate a sale of Maria

          8  Lopez, which as is already pointed out, is an

          9  affordable project-based Section 8 property to the

         10  purchaser or the principal of which is Jerrold

         11  Migdol.

         12                 I'm just going to say a couple of

         13  bullet points as to why we believe that, and then

         14  the testimony, I apologize there is not enough

         15  copies, but I hope there is enough for the Council

         16  members that are here, provides some supplemental.

         17                 Firstly, we are concerned of Mr.

         18  Migdol's track record on housing conditions. When we

         19  checked on Friday, we identified that he owned or

         20  managed I believe 78 units of housing and currently

         21  there are 569 HPD violations on those 78 units. Mr.

         22  Migdol has a history of flipping properties for

         23  rather large profit. In the case of one

         24  project-based Section 8 property in Harlem, he

         25  purchased it for $7 million, then submitted a notice
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          2  of intent to terminate that project-based Section 8

          3  contract, and 20 months later, flipped it for $15.3

          4  million. So, we're quite concerned about what he

          5  would do if he becomes the owner of Maria Lopez

          6  Plaza.

          7                 Thirdly, Mr. Migdol was involved in a

          8  purchase of a building through HUD's 203K program,

          9  which is a rather problematic program that involve

         10  questionable realtors selling properties at usually

         11  inflated prices, primarily to non-profits, who are

         12  then stuck with the bill and then promptly

         13  foreclosed on. In some cases, as in Mr. Migdol's

         14  case, they were sold to for-profit entities.

         15                 Those buildings, there are two which

         16  we know of through a colleague who was organizing

         17  residents in those buildings, quickly deteriorated,

         18  the conditions quickly deteriorated, and Mr. Migdol

         19  encouraged tenants to move to another property. In

         20  one case he encouraged tenants to move to St.

         21  Nicholas Manor, as he advertised it as an affordable

         22  housing development, which is number four, and I

         23  already referenced it, is the property where he had

         24  already submitted a notice of intent to terminate

         25  the project-based Section 8 contract, which is what
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          2  kept the building affordable.

          3                 Lastly, you know, we discourage the

          4  City from allocating valuable and limited resources

          5  to this property, as we understand Mr. Migdol had

          6  said in a meeting with tenants that he intends to

          7  develop market-rate condominiums on a parcel of land

          8  that according to the City's original land

          9  disposition agreement was supposed to be developed

         10  into park land. And we do not think that that is a

         11  valuable resource. It should be a park rather than

         12  market-rate condos. And that's about it. Thank you

         13  very much.

         14                 Oh, there's one other issue also, I

         15  would say. I have heard, though I have not read,

         16  that there is a rather nasty story in The Post this

         17  morning impugning Council Member Arroyo for her

         18  opposition to this tax abatement award, and I would

         19  just question the City as to whether or not you want

         20  to reward somebody who is planting stories like that

         21  with further tax abatements. So, thank you very much

         22  for the opportunity to testify, and we're here to

         23  answer any questions.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you for

         25  that.
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          2                 We'll now hear from Mr. Loftin, the

          3  District Manager of Bronx Community Board 1.

          4                 MR. LOFTIN: Thank you, members of the

          5  Council. It's good to be here.

          6                 Dear Council Members, on behalf of

          7  our Chairperson, Mr. George L. Rodriguez, I want to

          8  thank you for allowing our Board to provide this

          9  statement on the proposed acquisition of a HUD

         10  property known as "Maria Lopez Plaza" by the Migdol

         11  Organization LLC, which is located in our Community

         12  Board, Bronx Community Board 1.

         13                 During the past ten years, over 2,500

         14  new and rehabilitated units have been developed in

         15  District 1. This construction has been achieved

         16  through initiatives such as Mayor Bloomberg's New

         17  Housing Plan, and the infusion of public and private

         18  capital. The fact that banks have reconsidered their

         19  lending criteria to support reinvestment in our

         20  community reflects a commitment to the growth in the

         21  Bronx.

         22                 With this resurgence, one of the

         23  challenges to the stability of our neighborhoods is

         24  the future survival of affordable housing for

         25  low-income families. In the past we have witnessed
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          2  the absence of adequate attention to the management

          3  and operating needs of the District's multi-family

          4  housing stock.

          5                 This neglect contributed to a

          6  substantial loss of our housing portfolio, and a

          7  reduction of our population from 150,000 in 1980, to

          8  82,159 persons presently according to the United

          9  States census. It is of paramount importance to this

         10  board that our subsidized multi-family rental

         11  housing be retained. The residents of Maria Lopez

         12  Plaza property are disproportionately those of our

         13  citizens with the greatest housing need and the

         14  least of resources to obtain improved rental

         15  housing.

         16                 According to HUD, all indications

         17  suggest that the property in which they reside is

         18  troubled and in serious distress. Because of this

         19  neglect, the tenancy of Maria Lopez Plaza has

         20  received organizing intervention from the staff of

         21  the Urban Homeowners Assistance Board (UHAB). The

         22  majority of the residents have a willingness to

         23  assume a role in the selection of a new owner and

         24  have expressed of a purchase by the Migdol

         25  Organization their concern.
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          2                 As we have seen decisions in the

          3  marketplace by owners of our affordable multi-family

          4  rental housing can have a formidable impact on its

          5  stability predominantly, these decisions are

          6  influenced by multiple and municipal financing

          7  programs available for the investment by property

          8  owners and developers. It is imperative that the

          9  various financial incentives, such as tax

         10  exemptions, help support the development and

         11  retention of affordable housing, not its

         12  elimination. The tax exemptions outlined in Section

         13  125 of the private Housing Finance Law should be

         14  utilized as intended, as a vehicle to finance

         15  affordable housing, not to subsidize a profitable

         16  future sale of a property.

         17                 As a result of improving real estate

         18  market conditions in District 1, the owners of

         19  multiple family housing rental have been responding

         20  more rapidly to the rising estimates of our

         21  neighborhood's future. With these increasing

         22  investment values, the opting out of, or flipping,

         23  of a HUD-subsidized rental project as a market rate

         24  or upper-income rental, or cooperative or

         25  condominium housing may exceed the outstanding
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          2  principal balance of the existing mortgage.

          3                 In closing, the physical upgrading

          4  that has occurred in the immediate environs of the

          5  Maria Lopez Plaza is improving the quality of life

          6  in the area. Based on the past performance of the

          7  proposed owner, we have concerns as to the

          8  applicant's commitment to sustain the property as a

          9  viable part of the district's housing portfolio. The

         10  selling of Maria Lopez Plaza, a problem building to

         11  a problem owner would be ill-advised. We ask that in

         12  this matter a higher level of care and consideration

         13  be extended by the Council of the City of New York

         14  in this endeavor. We request your assistance and

         15  support by denying a tax exemption to the Migdol

         16  Organization LLC to support the purchase of Maria

         17  Lopez Plaza.

         18                 Once again, I want to thank you,

         19  Council, for the opportunity to speak on this

         20  matter. Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         22  much for your testimony.

         23                 And now we'll hear from Ms. Denise

         24  Rosa. Welcome.

         25                 MS. ROSA: Thank you. Good afternoon,
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          2  everyone, Mr. Chairman and the members of the

          3  Committee. My name is Denise Rosa. I'm a tenant from

          4  Maria Lopez Plaza, and on behalf of the tenants of

          5  Maria Lopez Plaza, I ask not to approve the sale of

          6  Maria Lopez Plaza to Jerrold Migdol for the

          7  following reasons:

          8                 Mr. Migdol has a series of history of

          9  violations on other properties, and a history of not

         10  renewing the Section 8 contract when the contract

         11  expires. That's a concern for us tenants. He caused

         12  segregation that most of us tenants noticed at the

         13  first meeting, that the current tenant association

         14  held back on September of 2006. In fact, I was not

         15  even allowed to speak in the tenant association

         16  meeting. Dan Dislover (phonetic) from UHAB, he's a

         17  witness.

         18                 Jerrold Migdol influenced residents,

         19  leaders by offering individual inducements, such as

         20  employment, preferential and other benefits not

         21  available to all the residents in the development.

         22  That's a violation of the rules and regulations of

         23  HUD and is unfair for other tenants. Maria Alvarez,

         24  a tenant here today, received a gift that other

         25  tenants like myself did not receive.
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          2                 Jerrold Migdol has his employers

          3  putting up signs two days prior to tenant

          4  association elections, with the tenant association.

          5  Both parties again violated the rules and

          6  regulations of HUD.

          7                 Jerrold Migdol has his employers,

          8  Ronald Clark and Defino Cruz, at the election and

          9  once again, that's a violation of the rules and

         10  regulation. It is considering intimidation to the

         11  tenants. And two days prior to the elections is not

         12  enough for the tenants.

         13                 Jerrold Migdol made false allegations

         14  about me on Bronxnet TV, when he also said that I

         15  spoke to Peter Fein (phonetic), a developer across

         16  the street from Maria Lopez Plaza. I never spoke to

         17  Peter Fein. I never met him. I only heard about him.

         18                 If Jerrold Migdol talked about me

         19  with false allegations, that gives me the impression

         20  that he has a personal vendetta with me. And if he

         21  has a personal vendetta with me, then that means

         22  he'll have a personal vendetta with anybody that

         23  disagrees with anything on his behalf.

         24                 If Jerrold Migdol had the nerve to

         25  make false allegations about a tenant on TV, he'll
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          2  make false allegations about anyone.

          3                 He caused emotional problems to my

          4  daughter and I. After listening to these false

          5  allegations, I wasn't able to think right,

          6  concentrate when given a test in Capital Hill with

          7  my Board members.

          8                 Jerrold Migdol has caused a lot of

          9  damage, emotionally, segregation, confusion, false

         10  allegations, and lies after lies just to get what he

         11  wants. Obviously he's not going to keep his word in

         12  keeping the building in good shape and affordable,

         13  because he's used to breaking the rules whenever he

         14  wants just to get what he wants.

         15                 Mr. Chairman, members of Congress --

         16  members of the Committee, excuse me -- on behalf of

         17  tenants of Maria Lopez Plaza and myself, I ask you

         18  to please take this matter into consideration. The

         19  evidence is on the plate. There is videotapes on

         20  Bronxnet. I have evidence here that contradicts

         21  everything he said on Bronxnet. I made copies about

         22  it. Jerrold Migdor has done so much damage and he's

         23  not even the owner. I can imagine if he was to

         24  become the owner of Maria Lopez Plaza, it will be

         25  tragic. Thank you.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          3  much. And thanks to all of you. I have a few

          4  follow-up questions, and I know there are members of

          5  this Committee and others who wish to speak. So, let

          6  me direct this specifically to Mr. Coleman, because

          7  I think your testimony raised a few questions for

          8  me.

          9                 You noted that the proposed purchaser

         10  here, Mr. Migdol, had some 569 HPD violations on 78

         11  units. Are those active violations today?

         12                 MR. COLEMAN: That's what we

         13  identified on HPD's, you know, Violations website on

         14  Friday.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: How long have

         16  they been outstanding?

         17                 MR. COLEMAN: I can't tell you right

         18  now. In some cases it lists some violations that

         19  were posted last week, and sometimes it's a little

         20  while ago. But those are, if you go on HPD's

         21  website, those are the ones that are listed as all

         22  "open" violations.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: That's a lot

         24  of violations.

         25                 Okay, and on to your next point here
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          2  about "flipping" properties. You noted that one case

          3  there was a sale of property for twice the purchase

          4  price, an affordable HUD property; can you just tell

          5  us a little bit more about what that was, and what

          6  the result was after that flip?

          7                 MR. COLEMAN: Sure. It was a -- it is

          8  still, luckily, a project-based Section 8 property

          9  called "St. Nicholas Manor," located at 680 St.

         10  Nicholas Avenue. Mr. Migdol purchased it, I believe

         11  in December 2003 for, City records indicate, $7

         12  million.  In January of 2004, I think, he issued a

         13  Notice of Intent to opt out of the project-based

         14  Section 8 contract, which is a federal -- they have

         15  to issue a Notice of Intent to opt out one year in

         16  advance of the expiration of the contract if they

         17  want to do that.

         18                 Tenants and Neighbors organized the

         19  building. We started to work with the residents in

         20  the property, who pushed for a renewal. Mr. Migdol

         21  sold the property to another purchaser for $15.3

         22  million, before the contract actually expired, and

         23  the new purchaser, the new owner, did renew the

         24  project-based Section 8 contract. So, we were able

         25  to save the building, but we were not -- it was
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          2  quite concerning to us Mr. Migdol bought it and

          3  promptly opted out.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. And just

          5  to understand, there are two. There is a St.

          6  Nicholas Manor property, and then there is 783 St.

          7  Nicholas Avenue.

          8                 MR. COLEMAN: Different properties.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Those are two

         10  separate.

         11                 MR. COLEMAN: Different properties.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

         13                 So, the St. Nicholas Manor property,

         14  that's the one where it was purchased for 7 million

         15  and sold for 15.3 within a less than two-year period

         16  and you're saying that even though a notice to opt

         17  out of project-based Section 8 was issued one year

         18  in advance, it was sold to yet another buyer within

         19  20 months and it didn't actually expire and the new

         20  owner kept the program.

         21                 MR. COLEMAN: Right.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Is that right?

         23                 MR. COLEMAN: That's correct, yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: All right.

         25                 What is the formal process for opting
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          2  out of Section 8? What would an owner have to do,

          3  and what would that look like for tenants, if you

          4  could? And also there are 215 or 216 units here, if

          5  you could put it in context of this particular

          6  property?

          7                 MR. COLEMAN: Sure. Firstly, federal

          8  laws says when an owner does not want to renew a

          9  project-based Section 8 contract, one year in

         10  advance of the expiration of the contract they have

         11  to issue a Notice of Intent to opt out to not renew

         12  that contract. So that was the notice that Mr.

         13  Migdol submitted on St. Nicholas Manor.

         14                 Now, Maria Lopez's Plaza is a little

         15  bit different. This building, the current owner took

         16  this building through HUD's market-to-market

         17  program, which is a program that restructures the

         18  debt on the property, attaches a regulatory

         19  agreement to it, and requires that they continue the

         20  project-based Section 8 contract for, I think it's

         21  20 years, though there is a regulatory agreement

         22  that keeps it affordable for 30 years.

         23                 So, that happened I believe in 2002.

         24  So, they're obligated to, whoever the owner is for

         25  Maria Lopez Plaza, they're obligated to keep it
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          2  project-based Section 8 as long as Congress votes

          3  the funds, until 2022, for Maria Lopez.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: You said it

          5  was a 20-year program and it was from 1992?

          6                 MR. COLEMAN: Right. Right now they

          7  only offer project-based Section 8 contracts for 20

          8  years.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Right.

         10                 MR. COLEMAN: But there is a

         11  regulatory agreement that will go ten years beyond

         12  that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I see. So,

         14  it's beyond the 2012, which would be 20 years.

         15                 Okay, and, so, what would happen

         16  then? Let's say the 20 years would lapse, the ten

         17  additional years for the regulatory scheme to

         18  elapse, what would happen then if it were not

         19  renewed for the tenants of this community?

         20                 MR. COLEMAN: In 2022?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Yes.

         22                 MR. COLEMAN: I can't say at this

         23  point. I don't know.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. Well,

         25  just if you could explain how the Section 8 piece of
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          2  this works in connection with this property.

          3                 MR. COLEMAN: Sure.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And then what

          5  that would mean for individual tenants who were not

          6  available.

          7                 MR. COLEMAN: Sure. I mean, when a

          8  project-based Section 8 contract expires, eligible

          9  tenants are screened to determine whether or not

         10  they can get a Section 8 voucher, which is kind of

         11  the cushion that the federal government provides to

         12  the tenants in this situation.

         13                 So, the project-based Section 8

         14  contract goes away. Tenants that are currently in

         15  place are screened for eligibility for Section 8

         16  vouchers. There are usually a couple of hoops that

         17  people are going to have to jump through. This is

         18  not a perfect process, and we've typically found

         19  that somewhere between ten to 30 percent of tenants

         20  at that point of conversion do not get the Section 8

         21  vouchers. Either they don't get the application in

         22  on time, their household isn't appropriately sized

         23  for that apartment.

         24                 If they get a Section 8 voucher,

         25  fine. You know, the owner is obligated to accept it
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          2  and it can stay there. If they don't get a Section 8

          3  voucher, they have to pay the new market rent that

          4  the owner is asking, or they have to leave and

          5  they're out in the open market.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. And then

          7  to move for a second to the 783 St. Nicholas Avenue,

          8  which it's a separate property again.

          9                 MR. COLEMAN: Totally different.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: You noted that

         11  certain tenants were encouraged to seek housing

         12  elsewhere?

         13                 MR. COLEMAN: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I guess I'd

         15  like to ask you to say just a little bit more about

         16  that, because I didn't completely understand from

         17  your testimony.

         18                 MR. COLEMAN: Sure. This is a property

         19  that Mr. Migdol got through HUD's 203K program. It

         20  was in troubling condition, and when he purchased

         21  it, I think we have tenant testimony from four

         22  residents on that property, and most of our

         23  information on Migdol's 203K properties comes from

         24  James Lewis, who is currently at Catch (phonetic),

         25  so we can get you more information from James, and
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          2  tenant testimony indicates that when Mr. Migdol

          3  bought the property the conditions deteriorated

          4  further, instead of being renovated, which was what

          5  the program was all about, and when tenants

          6  complained, he encouraged them to vacate.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

          8                 The last thing I wanted to understand

          9  is the last point in your testimony, where you said

         10  that you understand that there is a plan to develop

         11  market-rate condominiums on an adjoining parcel of

         12  land, which was supposed to be park land.

         13                 MR. COLEMAN: That's my understanding

         14  what the City's LDA currently says, is there is a

         15  piece of land that is supposed to have developed

         16  into park land and never has been developed into a

         17  park land.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: This is next

         19  to the Urbanization Maria Lopez?

         20                 MR. COLEMAN: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. So, it

         22  supposed to be developed as park land, never was,

         23  and it is a City property?

         24                 MR. COLEMAN: It is privately owned.

         25  The City has a regulatory agreement attached to it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: It's privately

          3  owned by whom?

          4                 MR. COLEMAN: Currently owned by Aimco

          5  (phonetic).

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay.

          7                 MR. COLEMAN: And there's federal

          8  subsidies. When the City sold the land originally it

          9  attached a land disposition agreement with it that

         10  dictated how they use certain parts of the land. So,

         11  there is one piece of land there, there was supposed

         12  to have been a park developed. The park was never

         13  developed. Mr. Migdol has said in meetings with

         14  tenants that he would like to develop market-rate

         15  condos on that piece of land.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I see. But he

         17  doesn't presently own that?

         18                 MR. COLEMAN: He does not presently

         19  own it. He's applying for a tax abatement to

         20  facilitate his purchase of the property from the

         21  current owner.

         22                 MS. LEVY: I'm sorry, can I just add

         23  one thing?

         24                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: If you'll just

         25  identify yourself first.
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          2                 MS. LEVY: Sorry. I'm Dina Levy from

          3  UHAB. Just to be clear about this last piece. Maria

          4  Lopez sits on two lots. The second lot will be sold

          5  to him if Maria Lopez is sold to him. So, this is in

          6  a separate-conducted sale. In other words, if this

          7  tax abatement goes through and he acquires Maria

          8  Lopez, in that jail he will acquire the vacant land

          9  next door that should have been a public park, and

         10  instead will be converted into market rate condos,

         11  which I guess he'll make a substantial profit on.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: I see. And he

         13  has made representations to the tenants that would

         14  be his intention?

         15                 MS. LEVY: In no uncertain terms. UHAB

         16  and the tenants have met with Mr. Migdol a number of

         17  times and asked him to negotiate with the residents

         18  about actually if he acquires the property, turning

         19  the land into a park as it was intended, he has

         20  rejected that.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay. Did you

         22  want to add anything on that, Ms. Rosa?

         23                 MS. ROSA: Yes. Jerrold Migdol, on

         24  many occasions he had said that he does want to

         25  build the condos in the vacant lot, but he hasn't
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          2  been too honest with the tenants. There were times

          3  when we held meetings and he said that he's going to

          4  build affordable housing. So, you know, he as brung

          5  (sic) a lot of confusion among us, the tenants.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

          7  much.

          8                 I think we may have some comments

          9  from colleagues.

         10                 Questions? Oh, okay. I have one more

         11  person wishing to testify on this, so let me thank

         12  you all for your testimony. Let me invite Yolanda

         13  Gonzalez of Nos Quedamos. Ms. Gonzalez, are you

         14  here? Ms. Gonzalez not present. Yolanda Gonzalez?

         15  Okay. All right, seeing nobody else wishing to

         16  testify on this item, I will ask Council Member

         17  Maria del Carmen Arroyo to share her views.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DEL CARMEN ARROYO:

         19  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         20                 The issue regarding this development

         21  came to my attention shortly after I was elected in

         22  2005. Through the work of the then President of the

         23  Tenants Association, Denise Rosa, and the work with,

         24  the organizing work on the UHAB, and the concern was

         25  always this is a concern for us, what's going to
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          2  happen to our home if this individual buys this

          3  property. Having had the opportunity to understand

          4  the implications of an individual company or a

          5  person, such as Mr. Migdol, to own property in a

          6  community that must do everything possible to

          7  protect the inventory of affordable housing we have

          8  in the community is something that I have promised

          9  to do. I urge my colleagues please vote no on this

         10  application. It's very concerning to see an

         11  individual come into a community, be as disruptive

         12  as he has been, not only in properties that he

         13  currently owns, by not maintaining them well, and

         14  subjecting his tenants to substandard housing, but

         15  to come into a community, organize tenants so that

         16  there is factions of tenants who, for the most of 20

         17  some odd years, have been good neighbors, and today

         18  there is division in that population concerns me

         19  very, very much. So, I ask you, please, vote no on

         20  this item.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you,

         22  Council Member Maria del Carmen Arroyo.

         23                 Seeing no other members of the public

         24  wishing to testify on this item, I will close the

         25  hearing on Land Use No. 470, the Urbanization Maria
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          2  Lopez, in Bronx Community Board 1, 20075535 HAX. And

          3  I will open the hearing on Land Use No., this is

          4  preconsidered non-ULURP No. 20075580 HAM, and I'd

          5  like to invite HPD back up. This is a property in

          6  Manhattan at 521 West 135th Street, in the district

          7  of Council Member Robert Jackson. And Ms. Clark,

          8  welcome back.

          9                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Thank

         10  you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And as soon as

         12  you're ready, please go ahead and introduce this

         13  item.

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Okay,

         15  this item consists of the proposed disposition of

         16  one occupied City-owned building located, as you

         17  said, at 521 West 135th Street through HPD's Tenant

         18  Interim Lease Program, which is known as the TIL

         19  Program.

         20                 TIL assists organized tenant

         21  organizations in City-owned buildings to develop

         22  economically sufficient low-income co-ops. This

         23  projects consists of a five-story building with 20

         24  residential units. It's currently being renovated.

         25  Council Member Jackson has been briefed, and he has
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          2  indicated his support.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          4  It's going to be five stories and 20 cooperative

          5  units; is that right?

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

          7  correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And I assume

          9  it's today five stories?

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: It's

         11  five stories and 20 units.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: And is it 20

         13  units, also?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

         15  that's correct. And 19 of the units were occupied,

         16  one was vacant, when the building was vacated for

         17  the rehabilitation.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

         19  you.

         20                 Seeing no other members of the public

         21  wishing to testify on non-ULURP No. 20075580 HAM, we

         22  will close the hearing on that item and open the

         23  hearing on preconsidered Land Use, non-ULURP No.

         24  20075585 HAK, a property in Brooklyn. 1243 Troy

         25  Avenue, in the district of Council Member Kendall
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          2  Stewart.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: I'd

          4  like to invite Sal D'Avola, who is the Executive

          5  Director of Restored Homes, up to the table to join

          6  me. We have put in a speaker card for him. He'll

          7  help me with the questions on this.

          8                 This actually represents the first

          9  time the Council is hearing about a new program that

         10  HPD is bringing forward, it's called "The Asset

         11  Control Area Dollar Homes Program," and 1243 Troy

         12  Avenue consists of the proposed moderate

         13  rehabilitation of a vacant one-family home.

         14                 Back in 2006, the federal agency

         15  Housing and Urban Development, along with HPD, and

         16  the non-profit restored homes HDFC, executed an

         17  agreement allowing for the creation of an asset

         18  control area in New York City.

         19                 In accordance with this agreement,

         20  HUD agreed to sell FHA, that's the Federal Housing

         21  Administration, foreclosed, vacant, one- to

         22  four-family homes in its inventory to Restored Homes

         23  HDFC, the organization that Mr. D'Avola represents.

         24                 In collaboration with HPD, Restored

         25  Homes will oversee the rehab of these homes and the

                                                            98

          1  PLANNING, DISPOSITIONS AND CONCESSIONS

          2  marketing process established to identify

          3  income-eligible purchasers.

          4                 To date, Restored Homes has purchased

          5  22 homes from HUD, and is planning to start the

          6  rehabilitations shortly. Today, HPD seeks the

          7  Council's approval of a UDAAP tax exemption for

          8  eligible purchasers to enhance the affordability of

          9  the project. Council Member Stewart has been briefed

         10  on the matter of 1243 Troy Avenue and has indicated

         11  his support.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you for

         13  that. If you could just explain to us the

         14  distinction between the Dollar Homes plan and the

         15  203K plans, which we had discussed in prior hearings

         16  what the difference is between those?

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: They're

         18  completely separate programs. They both deal with

         19  HUD to some degree, because as you'll recall, back

         20  in 2002, the 203K houses which were HUD properties

         21  ended up being taken in foreclosure by HUD. These

         22  are properties that it's a completely separate

         23  program, the only similarity is that there is a HUD

         24  ownership and a foreclosure process in this case

         25  involving FHA that is involved.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 Seeing no other members of the public

          5  wishing to testify on this item, I'm going to close

          6  the hearing on non-ULURP No. 20075585 HAK, and open

          7  the hearing on non-ULURP No. 20075586 at 45 Euclid

          8  Avenue in Brooklyn, in the district of Council

          9  Member Erik Martin Dilan, also part of the Dollar

         10  Homes.

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: That's

         12  right. And this item consists of the proposed rehab

         13  of a vacant, one-family home, located, as you said,

         14  at 45 Euclid Avenue in Brooklyn, through the ACA

         15  Dollar Homes Initiative. Council Member Dilan has

         16  been briefed on the matter and has indicated his

         17  support.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         19  We'll close the hearing on non-ULURP No. 20075586,

         20  and open the hearing on non-ULURP No. 20075589, two

         21  properties in the Bronx, in the district of Council

         22  Member Seabrook, also Dollar Homes.

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         24  This item consists of the proposed rehab of one

         25  vacant three-family home, located at 3537 Barnes
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          2  Avenue, and one two-family home located at 960 East

          3  230th Street through the Asset Control Area Dollar

          4  Homes Initiative.

          5                 Council Member Seabrook was briefed

          6  and has indicated his support.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

          8                 Thank you very much. Seeing no other

          9  members of the public wishing to testify on

         10  non-ULURP No. 20075589 HAX, we will close the

         11  hearing on that item, and open the hearing on

         12  non-ULURP No. 20075593 HAQ, four properties in

         13  Queens in the district of Council Member Leroy

         14  Comrie.

         15                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Right.

         16  This item consists of the proposed rehabilitation of

         17  four vacant one-family homes located at 132-03 178th

         18  Street, 111-19 168th Street, 105-27 171st Place, and

         19  122-38 Springfield Boulevard through the Asset

         20  Control Area Dollar Homes Initiative.

         21                 Council Member Comrie has been

         22  briefed and indicated his support.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you.

         24                 No one else wishing to testify on

         25  non-ULURP No. 20075593 HAQ, we will close the
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          2  hearing on that item, and open the hearing on

          3  non-ULURP No. 20075594 HAR, four properties in

          4  Staten Island, District of Council Member Mike

          5  McMahon.

          6                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK:

          7  Correct. This item consists of the proposed rehab of

          8  four vacant one-family homes located at 30 Hill

          9  Street, 175 Clove Road, 32 Aristina Place, and 25

         10  Bowen Street, through the Asset Control Area Dollar

         11  Homes Initiative. Council Member McMahon was briefed

         12  and has indicated his support.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         14  much. Seeing nobody else wishing to testify on that

         15  item, we'll close the hearing on non-ULURP number

         16  20075594 HAR, and I am going to reopen the hearing

         17  on the Urbanization Maria Lopez. Thank you both very

         18  much. Land Use No. 470. We had called Ms. Yolanda

         19  Gonzalez before and I understand, Ms. Gonzalez, that

         20  you were in the room next door. Our apologies. But

         21  we would like to hear from you, so we're going to

         22  reopen the hearing on Land Use No. 470. And as I

         23  understand you represent Nos Quedamos. If you could

         24  just introduce yourself and state your name for the

         25  record. And just go right ahead.
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          2                 MS. GONZALEZ: Thank you very much. My

          3  name is Yolanda Gonzalez. I'm the Executive Director

          4  of Nos Quedamos, and thank you for allowing me the

          5  privilege in order to testify here today.

          6                 Nos Quedamos has been in this

          7  community for over 15 years. Within the community,

          8  we have conveyed the needs of the community in

          9  different dynamics to which the community has a key

         10  role in the development of the Melrose Commons.

         11                 The community are the stakeholders of

         12  the once-impoverished state in the South Bronx. With

         13  the assistance of the elected officials, State and

         14  City agencies, we were able to bring back the

         15  community, the necessary resources to support and

         16  start the redevelopment of the South Bronx.

         17                 Nos Quedamos has assisted in many

         18  developments within the community that it serves.

         19  Nos Quedamos's track record speaks for itself, and

         20  the way that Nos Quedamos interacts with its

         21  community.

         22                 Nos Quedamos is now assisting a

         23  development in deplorable conditions within the

         24  Hunt's Point section. Nos Quedamos has renovated

         25  many buildings to keep housing affordable for
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          2  low-income residents in the South Bronx.

          3                 This is the way that Nos Quedamos

          4  engages the Council to vote no for the tax abatement

          5  for Maria Lopez development. The current developer

          6  who wants to purchase this particular development

          7  will probably not serve the best interests of the

          8  community who in the short-term -- within the

          9  shortage of the housing, affordable housing in New

         10  York City, this will be a devastating blow to our

         11  community.

         12                 The proposed developer has a track

         13  record that is not in sync with the needs of the

         14  stakeholders in our community. The Maria Lopez

         15  development in the state of deplorable repairs is --

         16  this is a Section 8-based building to assist

         17  low-income families. The community is outraged by

         18  the way the development of Maria Lopez Apartments

         19  has been handled and ultimately the way that the

         20  land will be dispensed.

         21                 We believe that the land will be sold

         22  to a prospective buyer that will have intentions

         23  other than keeping it affordable in the Section 8

         24  program. The land associated with the property will

         25  be up for review in 2010, as well. To see the best
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          2  way of the use of the parcel of the area, the

          3  Council members should take into consideration the

          4  track record that the proposed developer has had in

          5  the past with the stock of housing that he has

          6  bought over the years.

          7                 With the shortage of affordable

          8  housing growing every year, we cannot ill-afford to

          9  allow the developer to continue to track (sic) off

         10  development of affordable housing within our

         11  communities.  The developer does this by removing

         12  the stock of affordable housing and developing units

         13  at market rate. At this rate, we will never meet the

         14  needs of the residents of our community.

         15                 Since the South Bronx has had a

         16  significant growth due to renovated apartments, the

         17  community does not want to be gentrified. The stakes

         18  are high for this community. Our residents have

         19  stayed through very difficult times, due to the lack

         20  of resources, redevelopment and services that now

         21  are coming back very slowly, and what is their

         22  repayment for staying and fighting? Having to move

         23  out of their beloved community because they cannot

         24  afford it.

         25                 Nos Quedamos has a vast interest in
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          2  the community and the development of Maria Lopez

          3  Housing. For the community's sake, we hope the right

          4  developer comes in to ensure these apartments which

          5  are over 200 units is maintained for residents that

          6  reside there, and any low-income family in needs of

          7  assistance of affordable housing.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you, Ms.

         10  Gonzalez. We appreciate your testimony.

         11                 With that I'm going to close -- oh,

         12  I'm sorry. Council Member Maria Baez.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Mr. Chair, if

         14  you can just indulge me. I have a question, but it's

         15  for HPD, regarding the Maria Lopez.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: We can bring

         17  them back, although the person who had testified on

         18  this item from HPD is no longer here. But we can

         19  give it a shot.

         20                 Come on up, Ms. Clark, Ms. Arroyo.

         21                 Thank you, Ms. Gonzalez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: My question, Ms.

         23  Clark, is the role that HPD plays in the selection

         24  process. Could you just explain that, with the tax

         25  abatement?
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          2                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Again,

          3  I'm really not the expert to explain this Article 5

          4  situation, and I would really prefer to defer it and

          5  have Julie Walpert present, who could give a full

          6  explanation of the process to you. Because my

          7  understanding is simply if there's a minimum --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: (Not using

          9  microphone.)

         10                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER CLARK: Yes,

         11  right. Okay. So this was worthy of presentation to

         12  the Council and that's why we're here.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Just for the

         14  record, my question was geared toward the selection

         15  process. And if an individual has outstanding, as a

         16  developer, outstanding violation with other

         17  property, what is the selection process with HPD and

         18  their recommendations? But we'll leave it for

         19  another meeting, okay? Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you. And

         21  thank you, both. We understand that the question was

         22  really directed at Ms. Walpert, who was here

         23  earlier. But, you know, that's a question that I

         24  know Council Member Baez will pursue.

         25                 I just want to make one note on Land
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          2  Use 470, because I am going to recommend a no vote

          3  on this, as the Chair. I have heard the testimony

          4  from the members of the community here today, and

          5  have heard a lot about the issues of violations that

          6  exist, a track record of potential concern here,

          7  some real questions about the future affordability.

          8  I can speak from my own experience in my own

          9  district in Stuyvesant Town and Peter Cooper Village

         10  and the sale of that community, which was sold for

         11  $5.4 billion and now the flurry of non-renewal

         12  notices that are coming to tenants who, many of whom

         13  are very legitimately in their apartments, the issue

         14  of the long-term affordability of neighborhoods is a

         15  real concern to those of us who are present here in

         16  New York City, and hearing no public support for

         17  this item, and also the very strong opposition that

         18  I heard from my colleague Council Member Maria del

         19  Carmen Arroyo, I am going to vote against Land Use

         20  No. 470.

         21                 But with that, we have no other items

         22  on today's calendar. We're going to lay over the

         23  rest at the request of the individual Council

         24  members in whose districts the properties sit.

         25                 Okay, just understanding the
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          2  technicalities of voting today, I'm going to hold

          3  this as a little guide here. So, I am going to

          4  recommend the disapproval of 470, and the approval

          5  of the rest. Now, of course, it's going to be a

          6  motion for disapproval on 470, so if you vote yes,

          7  that is a motion, yes, to disapprove. And just a

          8  reminder that on Land Use No. 444, that was the item

          9  in Council Member Ignizio's district, that is a

         10  motion to withdraw, and so, that is also an approval

         11  vote, if you wish to approve the motion to file

         12  pursuant to withdrawal. So, I guess what I'm saying

         13  is I recommend an aye vote on all items that we have

         14  considered today and all other items we will lay

         15  over for a future meeting at the request of

         16  individual Council members. And I'll ask the Counsel

         17  to call the roll.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair

         19  Garodnick.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Aye on all.

         21                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         22  Baez.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BAEZ: Aye on all.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         25  Dickens.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DICKENS: Aye on all.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          4  Ignizio.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER IGNIZIO: No on 483,

          6  aye on all others.

          7                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Okay. By a vote

          8  of four in the affirmative, and none in the

          9  negative, and no abstentions, all of the motions are

         10  approved, with the exception of Item No. LU 483,

         11  which is approved by a vote of three in the

         12  affirmative and one in the negative.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON GARODNICK: Thank you very

         14  much. And with that, let me thank all of the members

         15  of this Committee for your cooperation and patience,

         16  and thank all members of the public who were here

         17  today to testify. Thank you. And we are adjourned.

         18                 (Hearing concluded at 3:30 p.m.)
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